TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA

FINAN CIAL AND COMPLIAN CE REPORTS

JUNE 30, 2018



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA
: ~ DIRECTORY OF OFFICIALS

__ COUNCIL

* Tony Quintania.
. Michael Senate
- Kimberly Allar.

’ lRébﬁcr’t’ Zoldos, I, Mayor .
- James McIntyre, Vice-Mayor -

OFFICIALS ~

Mike Dunlap
- Nate Fontaine

Samuel A. sz k.
" Lance Gladstone

" Harriet West

Town Manager

' Treasurer

* Town Clerk



CONTENTS

: INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BASIC FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS

Government—mde ﬁnanclal statements
Statement of net position
Statement of activities .

. Fund financial statements -
Governmental fund:
- Balance sheet : : o
- Reconciliation of the balance sheet to the statement of net pos1t10n

~ Statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance
" Reconciliation of the statement of revenues, expenditures, and <

changes in the fund balance of the governmental fund to.the
. statement of activities ,
" Proprietary fund: '
Statement of net posmon ‘
Statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net posmon
- Statement of cash flows :
- Fiduciary funds: D
Statements of ﬁducrary net pos1t10n
Statements of changes in ﬁducrary net posrtron

’ Notes to financlal statements ‘ -

7 ;»REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION OTHER
THAN MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS -

General fund statement of revenues; expendltures and changes in -
* fund balance - budget and actual -
o Schedule of changes in the Town’s net pensmn (asset) 11ab111ty and
related ratios and schedule of émployer contributjons -

- Schedule of employer’s share of net OPEB liability — group hfe msurance |

~ program and schedule of employer contnbutrons '
l VOTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION ‘, |

. Fmanclal statements of md1v1dual funds o
‘General Fund Dol
~ Statement of 1 revenues, compared to budget .
. Statement of expendltures compared to budget

Water and Sewer Fund .

Statement of revenues, expenses and changes 1n net posrtron -
budget and actual :

Statement of operatmg expenses compared to budget

o ,‘COMPLIANCE SECTION

k Independent auditors’ report on internal control over financial repomng -

and on compliance and other matters based on an audit of financial
statements performed in accordance with Govemment Audztmg
Standards c

18and19
20
© 21 and 22

- Page |

4-11

12

14

15

17

23

24

2560

61
. 62-64
65 and 66

67 and 68
69and 70

.,
~7T2and 73

74-76



David W. Black, CPA
Managmg Partner

. . N N Vl . f “" - .‘ t . ‘ v\ 7 ChrlstopherR Ma nteo CPA
| E Company S o TaxPa:tnirmery’ .

* INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

v To the Honorable Town Councll
‘Town of Lovettsville -
~P.O.Box209
Lovettsville‘,' VA '201 80 ‘

B Report on the Audited Fmanclal Statements o

. We have audlted the aceOmpanymg ﬁnanc1a1 statements of the governmental actlvmes, the busmess-type aet1v1t1es
" and each major fund of the Town of Lovettsville, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related.

- notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Lovettsville’s basic ﬁnanclal statements as
listed-in- the table of contents. We also have reviewed the financial statements of Mayfest and Oktoberfest, as
~ discussed in this report under the heading “Report on the Reviewed Financial Statements.” ‘Mayfest and Oktoberfest' '

fmanc1al act1v1t1es are mcluded in the Town s bas1c ﬁnanmal statements as ﬁduc1ary funds
o Management’s Responslblhty for the Audlted Fmanclal Statements |

'Management is respons1b1e for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of these ﬁnanclal statements in accordance w1th

) - -accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, L

* and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparatlon and fa1r presentatlon of ﬁnancml statements that. are
free from matenal mlsstatement whether due to fraud or error.. : ; _

_Audltors’Responslblhty | 3 AR ‘_ !

o 'Our respons1b1hty isto express opuhons on these ﬁnanelal statements based on our audxt We conducted our’ aud1t in -
accordance with auditing standards generally. accepted-in the United: States of America and the standards applicable
to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United

States, Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtam reasonable assurance about whether the = 7

Tﬁnanclal statements are free from matenal mlsstatement

, An audxt mvolves performmg procedures to obtain audlt ev1dence about the amounts and dlsclosures in the ﬁnanmal

statements, - The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment of the risks of

material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,

‘the auditor considers internal control relevant to- the entity’s. preparatlon and fair presentation of the financial .
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumnstances, but not for the purpose of

~ expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An ‘audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness -of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of

significant aecountmg estimates made by management, as well as evaluatmg the overall presentatlon of the fmanmalv :

) statements .

‘ Young,Nieholas,Branner&Phillips; LLP : e "~ Retired I;artners

Certified Public Accountants -~ = - s o .. Bdward M. Young, CPA
Located at 1_041' South High Street E : . o . : iﬁ;&?g&?ﬁ; CCI;:
Mailing P.O. Box 2187 - o 7 , - R, ’

’ ‘Hamsonburg,VA 22801~ 9506

Richard E. Phillips, CPA
(540) 433-2581'+ FAX (540).433 ‘0147 ' '
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We believe that the audlt ev1dence we have obtamed is sufficient and appropnate to prov1de a bas1s for our audit
opnnons : ‘ A :
Audltors’ Oplmons
- In our opinion, the ﬁnanc1al statements- referred to above _present farrly, in all material respects, the respectlve '
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the Town of
Lovettsville, Virginia, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective changes in financial position, and where applicable,
- cash flows thereof for the year then, ended in accordance W1th accountmg prmcrples generally accepted in the United .
'States of America. : : ,
‘ j Other Matters

R'eq'ut‘red Supplementa”ry Informatioﬁ o

| Accountmg prmcrples generally accepted in the Umted States of America require that the management s d1scuss1on o

- and analysis and the required supplementary information, listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement

~ the basic financial statements, 'Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by -

- the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for

“placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied .
‘certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally

»accepted in_the ‘United States of America, which consisted of inquiries' of management about the methods of
7‘prepar1ng ‘the mformatlon and comparing the information for cons1stency W1th management’s. responses to our
inquiries,.the ‘basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial -

.. statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any -assurance on. the: information because the’ limited

, procedures do. not prov1de us W1th sufficient ev1dence to express an opinion or provrde any assurance. .
Other Informatzon BRI ,

" Our audit was conducted for the purpose of formmg opinions on the ﬁnanmal statements that collectrvely compnse
the Town of Lovettsville’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary. information, listed in the table of
- contents, is presented for purposes of addmonal analysrs and isnota requrred part of the basrc ﬁnancral statements o

ki

Such mformatlon is the respons1b1hty of management and was denved from and relates drrectly to the underlylng -

- accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to -
‘the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional - procedures,
including comparing and reconcﬂrng such information directly to the underlymg accounting and other records used to
- prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other addltlonal procedures ,

“in-accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. ' In our opinion, the L

mformatlon is falrly stated inall material respects- in relation to the basic financial. statements asa whole ‘

Other Reportmg Reqmred by Govemment Audttmg Standards .

In accordance w1th Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 10 201 8, onour °
- consideration of the Town of Lovettsville's internal control over financial reportmg and on our tests of its comphance
with certain provisions of laws, regulatlons, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. ‘The’ purpose of that
~ repoit is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance, and the
results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on comphance ,
" That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in-

cons1der1ng the Town of Lovettsv1lle s internal. control over ﬁnancral reportmg and compliance. o

. Report on the Rev1ewed Fmanclal Statements

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of the ﬁductary funds (Mayfest and Oktoberfest) of the
Town of Lovettsville, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements. A review includes pnmarrly applying analytical procedures to management’s financial data and makmg ‘
1nqu1r1es of management A review is substantially less .in scope than an audit, the objective of which is the
express1on of an opinion regardlng the ﬁnanc1al statements as a whole. Accordmgly, we do not express such an -
op1mon
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: Management’s ReSponS1b1hty for the Reviewed Fmanclal Statements

-Management is responSIble for the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of these f'manclal statements in accordance with’
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,

and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparatlon and fair presentatlon of ﬁnanclal statements that are

free from matenal rmsstatement whether due to fraud or etror,

, 1 Accountant’s Responsnbllity for the Revlewed Fmanclal Statements

, Our respons1b1hty is to conduct the review engagement in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accountmg .

and Review Services promulgated by the: Accounting .and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
* standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are aware
of ‘any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in accordance with

accounting principles ‘generally accepted in the United States of Amenca We ‘believe that the results of ourv »

procedures provide a reasonable ba51s for our conclus1on
: Accountant’s Conclusnon on the Rev1ewed Flnanclal Statements

" Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modlﬁcatlons that should be made to the accompanymg‘

- financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accountmg pnnmples generally accepted in the United '

L States of Amerlca

 Gouny, Whstls, Brannr » %zaawp n

Harrisonblifg,»V A
~ December 10, 2018




Page 4

'MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysls of the' Town of Lovettsyllle s financial n’erformance prowdes an ovetview of the
Town’s financial activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 Please read it in conjunctron w1th the Town s
financial statements, wmch begin on n page 12 : : : '

| lFINANCIAL HIGBLIGHTS

,The assets of the Town exceeded 1ts hab111t1es by $12 398 165 at the close of the most recent ﬁscal 7
- year. :
~ The Town’s net pos1t10n mcreased as a result of th1s year’s operatrons While net posmon of the '

businéss-type activities mcreased by $353 433 net pos1t10n of the governmental actrvrtres 1ncreased7 :

by $92,550.

In the Town’s busmess-type act1v1t1es operatlng revenues decreased by $767 from the prev1ous year
while operating expenses increased by $60,494. Nonoperating income increased by $29, 492, .

In the Town’s governmental activities, operating revenues increased by $259,501 from the prevrous o
year while operatmg expenses increased by $24,522. Nonoperatmg income decreased by $2,171.

‘Actual tevenues were $215,755 ‘more  than budgeted for the General Fund General Fund

o expendltures were $79,638 more than budgeted A
- Operating and nonoperating revenues were $57 635 more than budgeted for the Water ald Sewer

* Fund. Water and Sewer Fund operating expenses, excludmg deprecratlon, and mterest expense were

$136,289 less than budgeted.

" The Town spent $166,232 for capital addrtlons dunng the current ﬁscal year
- The Town s long-term debt decreased by $538 842 durmg the current fiscal year

- USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

Th1s annual report consrsts of a series of ﬁnancral statements. The Statement of Net Pos1t1on and the Statement of .

- Activities (on pages 12 and 13) provide information about the activities of the Town as a whole and present a - '

longer-term view of the Town’s finances, Fund finanicial statements start on page 14. For governmental activities,
~ these statements ‘tell how. these services were financed in the short term as well as what remains for the future
~ spending, Fund financial statements also report the Town’s operations in' more detarl than the government-w1de
‘ statements by prov1d1ng mformatlon about the Town’s most s1gn1ﬁcant funds, .
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} Reportmg the Town asa Whole k

‘ One of the 'most nnportant questrons asked about the Town s finances is, “Is the Town as a whole better off or

~worse off as a result of the year’s activities?” The Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities -

report information about the Town as a whole and about its activities in a way that help answer this question.

“These statements include ail assets and l1ab111tres using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the

, accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year’s revenues and expenses are taken into
' ‘account regardless of when cash is recerved or pa1d : '

~ These two statements report the Town s net position and changes init. You can. thmk of the Town’s ‘et posrtron -
-the drfference between assets and deferred outflows of resources, and liabilities and deferred inflows of resources

- as one way t to measure the Town’s financial health, or fi nancral position. Over time, increases ot decredses in
_the Town’s net posrtron are one indicator of whether its fi nancial health is. -improving or deteriorating. You will -

need to consider other nonfinancial factors, however, such as changes i in the Town s property base and condrtron v

"~ of the Town s roads to assess the overall health of the Town

' In the Statement of Net Posrtlon and the Statement of Act1v1t1es, we divide the Town into two kmds of act1v1t1es

e ‘Govemmental actzvztzes - Most of the Town’s bas1c services are reported here, 1ncludmg pubhc '

. safety, publrc works, community development and general admrmstratron Property taxes, other local
taxes and development fees ﬁnance most of these activities. :

e jBusmess-type activities - The Town charges a fee to customers/users to help it cover all or most of
o the cost of certam servlces 1t prowdes The Town’s Water and sewer system is reported here,

' Reportmg the Town s Most Srgmﬁcant Funds

. The ﬁmd fmancral statements begm on page 14 and provrde detalled mformatron about the Town s funds-not. the ‘

"Town as-a whole. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that

- have been segregated for specific activities or objectrves The Town uses fund accountmg to ensure and reflect -

- compliance (or noncompllance) with finance-related legal- requrrements, such as. the. budget ordinance. The
B Town s two kinds of funds governmental and proprzetary -use drfferent accountmg approaches.

9’3 Governmem‘al fund - Most of the Town s basrc services are reported in the govemmental fund, ‘which

- focuses-on how money flows into and out of the fund, and the balarices left at year-end that are
,nonspendable, restricted, committed, assrgned or unassrgned These classrﬁcatrons of fund balarice

. show the nature and extent of constraints placed on the Town’s fund balances by: law, creditors, -
-~ Town council, and the Town s annually adopted budget. Unassigned fund balance is available for-

, spendmg for any purpose. This fund is reported using an accountmg ‘method called modified accrual

~ accounting, whrch measures cash and all other financial assets that can readlly be converted to cash.

The - governmental fund statements prov1de a detailed short-term view of the Town’s general

. government. operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps
determine whether there-are more or.fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to -
finance the Town’s programs. We. describe the relationship (or differences) between governmental

‘ govemmental fund in reconcrlratrons followmg the fund ﬁnancral statements

' activities (reported in the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Actrvrtres) and the =
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- proprietary fund. The-proprietary fund is reported in the same waythat all activities are reported in

~ _ the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Act1v1t1es In fact, the Town’s enterprise fund i rs_,
~ the same as the busmess-type activities we report in the government-wide statements but provrdes '

more detall and addltlonal mformatlon such as cash ﬂows, for the propnetary fund.

THE TOWN AS A TRUSTEE

- The Town is the trustee or ﬁdumary, for the Mayfest and Oktoberfest Funds All of the Town’s ﬁducrary act1v1t1es/' "

are reported in a separate Statements of Fiduciary Net Position and a Statements. of Changes in F1du01ary Net

- Position on pages 23 and 24. Since this fund is custodial in nature (i.e. assets equal liabilities) it does not involve the
" measurement of results of operations. - We exclude these activities from the Town’s other financial statements -
" because the Town cannot use these assets to finance its operatioris. The Town is respons1ble for ensurmg that the

. assets reported in th1s fund are used for the1r 1ntended purposes

- THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

: tThe Town ] combzned net assets changed slightly from a year ago — mcreasmg from $Il 952 182 to $12,398,165. -
- During the year, the net assets of the governmental and business-type activitiés increased by 1 31 percent and 4. 6’7, »

o percent respectlvely Below isa summary of the net assets as of June 30 2018 and 2017

oo NETASSETS .
Govemmental Actlvmes Business-Type Activities . Total -
2018 _ 2017 2018 2017 " 208 . 2017
Current and other assets $ 2,679,337  $ 2,677,410 § 1939,007 § 1,645,193 $ 4618344 § 4322603
- Copitalassets | - _ 4,346,180 - _ 4338008 __ 8,641.833 _ 9005953 ._ 12,988,013 _13.343.961
' Totalassets . § 7,025,.'51 '$ 7015418 $ 10,580,840 $10.651,146 $ 17.606,357 $ 17.666,564 . -
-Total deferred . R e e
outflows of resources § 52 883 '§ 57951 § 145759 § 171, 103 $ 198642 $  229.054
: Long-term lisbilities  $ 1534 913 $1,597,833 - § 3,018929 § 3456 383 $ 4553842 § 5054216 - -
- Other liabilities " - - 98997 199562 __ 126,112 - 142,089 - .. 225109 _ 341651
"' Total liabilities .~ $ ,1,63‘3,910 $1.797395 '$ 3145041 . § 3598472 § 4778951 $ 5.395.867
"’ Total deferred - e S \ v
" inflows of resources $ 619,140 $ 543174 §$ _ 8743 § 4395 § 627883 | § 547.569
i ‘Net position: ' . : ) 7
. Net investment in o . R, R ' o
- capital assets" $.2,812,515 $2716082 $ 5626000 ‘$ 5535596 § 8438515 -$ 8,251,678
. Unrestricted '~ __'2,012.835 . _ 2.016.718 1,946,815 1683786 ~ 3.959.650 _  3.700,504

»To'tal r'l'et positioft g.sz_i.;sg 5;4.&.&2 ;5__1&& $.7219382- g&é&h@ $ 11,952,182

' *Net pos1t10n of 2017 govemmental and busmess-type act1v1t1es has been restated (see Note 15 page 60)

A portron of the Town s net pos1t1on (68 06 percent) reﬂects its investments in capltal assets (e g, land buildings, B

equipment, improvements, and infrastructure), less any debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The

Town uses these capital assets to provide sérvice.to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future

spendmg Although the Town s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that

the resources needed to repay this debt must be prov1ded from other sources, since the caprtal assets themselves
-~ cannot be used to 11qu1date these liabilities, o o

The remaining balance of unrestrlcted net assets ($3 959 ,650) may be used to meet the government s ongomg
- obligation to citizens and credrtors .

. _Proprzetary fund—When the Town charges customers/users for the services provrded it is reported ina-
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" The followmg is a summary of the change in net p0s1t10n for the governmental and bus1ness type act1v1t1es for the
_years ended June 30, 2018 and 2017. ,

_ Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities . _Total .

2018 w2017 — 2018 2017 2018 - 2017
Revenues o o T .
‘Charges for services '+ § 48,080 '$ 90,367 $ 1,131,805 $ 1,132,572 . % 1,179,885 $ 1,222,939
General property taxes 587,709 559,357 . 0. 587,709 559,357
. Other local taxes 530,081 439977 . . . - e 530081 - 439977
Intergovernmental -o186,161 © 17359 . . - o R 186,161 17,359
Miscellaneous. . - ‘ 27424 12894 - - . 27424 " ' 12,894
Total revenues . ' $ 1379455 $1,119954 -$ 1,131.805 $ 1.132.572 $ - 2511260 § 2252526
Program expenses ‘ 3 o . : : R ¥ R »
General government -~ § - 887,154 ~ § 870,934 . '§ = . % - % - 887154 § 870,934 .
Community development .~ 40,649 66,070 ' Ter e 40649 0 66,0700
Parks, recreation, and . L ‘ - o : - P A
“cultural L 34,593 - 34,836 S - Coe e 34,593 ) 34,836
... Publicsafety © - - 13,500 - 3,500 - s . 13500 . 3,500 -
- . Public works . . © 262,820 - 238,854 . - ) - ' © 7 262,820 . v 238,854
" Water.and sewer T S - 1,209,660 - _-1.149, 166 - 1,209,660 - 1,149.166
. Total e)(penses 8 1238716 -8 1,214,194 - $ 1.209.660 $ 1 149 166 $. 2448376 $ 2363360
Operatmg mcome : - L - T ] S :
(loss) s $ 140739 §° (94.240) $ . (77.855) § ° (16.594) L, 62,884 § (110,834)
Nonoperating . Lo A “ , S
 State disaster funds $§ 0 280 - - 8 N 3,200 $ - 8 3,200
(Loss) from disposal 2 S T e : B
" of equipment _ - AR (L715). " - L8 -
Interestincome 12,171 17307 - . 25754 - 1693 . - 37925 - 19,000 -
Lease income .. -~ ST L . 78,746 157 - 78,746 CISTT
Interestexpense < - ____(60360) . (63.325) . (91497) __ (98.814) - (151857) . (162.139)

. Total nonoperating  $._ (48.189) $  (46018) § 11288 § (18204) $ = (36901) $ (64.222)

,’Income(loss)he‘fore R coe R T B
Vcontribut‘ions‘ $ 92550 $(140,258) $ . (66,567) $ »(34 79,8) $ - 25‘,98‘3 $ (175056)_ :

Contrlbutions C . L. ) - 420, 000 360 400 ’ 420 000 ' 360 400

*Increase in net position s:_m_m L(AQ@ L_%ﬁ.gz M S%& L_J,&s,,g

. The Town’s total revenues mcreased by $258,734 (11 49 percent) The total cost of all programs and services

increased by $85,016 (3.60 percent). Nonoperatmg revenues increased by $27,321 (42.54 percent). Capital -

contributions increased by $59, 600. Our analys1s that follows separately cons1ders the operatlons of govemmental
and busmess-type activities. :

| Governmental Actlvitles

: Revenues for the Town § governmental act1v1t1es 1ncreased by $259 501 (23.7 1 percent) and expenses mcreased by
. $24 522 (2 02 percent) Thc factors dnvmg these results 1nclude o
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Revenues

- & Other local taxes increased by $90,104. Some of this increase is due to additional meals tax of $38,713,

“There are two new restaurants that have opened in Town, Velocity Wings and Rasco’s, which have been o

. responsible for this increase in meals tax. Business license revenue also increased this year by $35,880 due
- to overall economic growth in the Town. The Town also changed the procedures for ‘business license-
- .reporting, Beginning this year proof of "gross receipts was. required with the submission of the business

license application. Cigarette taxes increased by $12,850 which was due to the 7-Eleven being open for-all

~12'months of this fiscal year, ) T DI o o

o Intergovernmental revenue increased by $168,802. The Town received a grant this year from the County for

$150,000 to start the East Broad Way Phase 2A Improvement Project. In addition to that grant, the Town =
also received fire program funds in the amount of $20,000, $10,000 of which was for the prior fiscal year.

- Expenses -

- Public works increased by $23,966, The cost for trash removal this year increased by $18,218 due to the
- growing community and development that has occurred over the past years. Another increase is due to -
depreciation takeri on public works infrastructure. Depreciation increased by $4,210 due to the completion = - -

‘of the storm ditch improvement project. - =~ . . S o

‘:Bhéiness-Type 'A,ctivities: s

" Revenues for the Town’s busivhess-t.ypeﬁacti'vities, decreased by $767 (O;Oi’vpercérnt).,'and iéxpiebnses increased by
860,494 (5.26 percent). The factors driving these results include: - ' S R

" Revenues

e Water and sewer revenues decreased overall by $767. - This is less-than a 0.01 percent change from the
- previous year. Water and sewer cbnnectiqh,fecs were up slightly when compared with the prior year due to-

‘new housing development; however, the charges for water and sewer services including late fees were down’

 slightly to offset the increase in connection fees. - C Coe SRR

- Expenses o

o Water and sewer expenses increased overall by $60,494. There is no one individual factor responsible for

this increase in water and sewer expetise this. year; however, this increase is made up of multiple small

. increases. - Contractual services increased by $8,186, repairs and maintenance increased by $11,402; and

supplies and equipment increased by $14,568. These. three items all increased due to work being done at the

- wastewater treatment plant, In addition to those three items  increasing, the ‘cost of utilities iricreased by

$14,273 as well as the amount of dqpréciationareqorded on assets increased by $10,063. o :

~ The Town’s business-type activities also included an increase to interest income by $24,061 and a decrease in interest
.~ expense by $7,317. The increase in interest income resulted from moving some funds into certificate of deposits that.
. - are paying a higher interest rate. The decrease in inferest expense resulted from the paying down of loans borrowed

for capital improvements. o Lo o Lo R S

Finally, contributions increased in buéinéss-typé activities by $59,600. from the prior year. Water and séwer

availability fees were $59,600 higher than the prior year, with more availabilities being sold due to'the increase in
~"development. SR : o ST A
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, THE TOWN S FUNDS

As the Town completed the year, .its govemmental fund (as presented in the balance sheet on page 14) reported a ’,

" fund balance of $1,996,126, which is a decrease of $1,638 over last’ year’ s total of $1,997,764, The primary reasons
- _for the General Fund’s decrease mirror the changes noted in the previous section under “governmental” act1v1t1es
L Also, the Town expended $122 266 in capltal outlay for vanous prOJects throughout the:Town.,

As the Town completed the year, its proprletary funds (as presented in the statement of net pos1t10n on pages 18 and' S

" 19) reported net assets of $7,572, 815, which is an increase of $353,433 over last year’s total of $7,219,382.

IR Slgmﬁcant changes in the change in net assets are noted in the | prev1ous sectxon under “busmess-type” activities.

- : 'GENERAL FUND BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS

Over the ‘course of the year the Town Councﬂ d1d not make any rev1s1ons to the . General Fund budget The :

srgmﬂcant variations of actual results to the General Fund budget are summarlzed below '

o p _ Varlance B
: - e - _ ... Positive
Account - L R (Eegatlve)
' ,Revenues L . A
“ . Business hcenses S 8 32428
o Meals taxes =~ L 17,572
- - Developer proffers . o : 7,183 .
_Reimbursement - engineering .~~~ . 9,649 .
_ Bank franchise taxes S 11,746 =~
2A Broad Way Grant 150,000
}Flre program funds o : , 10,000
: ,Expendltures ~ : o
General GovernmentAdmzmstratlon o
. Consulting services S 8 0 (14,879)
Administrative salaries = - . 36,405
Legal fees, non-reimbursable -~~~ - . (34,603)
‘Software upgrade - . Co - 7(12,008)
- Community Development S o
_ Reimbursable - engmeermg L (8,221)
Event Expense - e 4,157
 Parks, Recreation and Cultural EREE e
Maintenance o - 10,530
- Utilities -~~~ 4569
. Public Works .~ SRR o
- Refuseservice =~ . C o (13,592)
. Capital Oytlay DR .
‘ Projects P e (126 167)

The Town, rece1ved more ‘business llcense revenue and meals tax than budgeted this year due to the contmued growth
of the Town.. Developer proffers and engineering fees exceeded expectations as there has been an increase in the

" development activity in the ‘Town over the last year. Bank franchise taxes were higher than expected this year due to-
the local banks having more money on deposit from the local busmesses The Town receiyed a grant from the county

to begm the East Broad Way Phase 2A Improvement Project; this was not a budgeted iten. The Town also received

2 years’ worth of fire funds. grant money this year, when the budget was only for 1 year. The Town d1dn’t receive the

grant in the prev1ous year and th1s was a catch-up year for that program,
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- The Town kept the budget consistent with the prior year for consulting services; however, the Town spent more than -
- expected in this area. Administrative salaries were less than budget this year due to not having a permanent Town
Manager for the year. Legal fees for the Town this year exceeded expectations due to the timing of when the Town
- received the bills for legal services rendered. The Town budgeted the same as the prior year for engineering- -

reimbursable but expenditures ‘exceeded expectations. as miore engineering services were needed. The Town
budgeted for event expense as the Town is expanding its events within the Town; however, expenditures did not meet
~expectations.” Both maintenance and utilities expenses for the Parks and Recreation department were less than
budgeted for this fiscal year. The Town budgeted less than necessary for refuse service expense due to not -
. anticipating the growth rate of the Town, = B T ' . '

Capital outlays were primarily funded through greater than anticipated revenues.
| CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
. Capital Assets o | |

LAt june, 30,7 2018, the Towﬁ had‘_$12.99‘.n‘ﬁllion inVcs.fgd,iri' capital assets ihcl‘udi‘nLg, land; V'bu'ilrding‘s, equipment, _
- .infrastructure and the \utility‘system.i (See table'that,fo’llo’ws:.), ‘This represents -a net decrease of $355,948, or 2.7

: pepéent, under last year.

- Governmental * - Business-Type = ' SR
. Activittes - . . Activities <~ . Totals ‘
2018 2017 2018 2017 . _ . 2018 2017
Land -~ $ 973,820 $ 973,820 $ 154,200 $ 154,200.% 1,128,020 $ 1,128,020 .-
- Constructionin.~ - . o e o
~ progress S 74139 70394 .. 98811 74,139 169,205
Buildings - 379,993 " 337612 .. - ' . 379,993 - 337,612,
Improvements . 362,070 = 320,214 S e 362,070 320214
* Equipment. - - 28,679 35002 . . . - T 28679 . 35002
Infrastructure 2,527479 2,600,966 . - . 2527479 2,600,966
Utility system -~ - " . 8487633 _ 8752942 8,487,633 ' 8,752,942
Totals: - . $4346,180 $ 4,338,008 $ 8,641,833 $9005953 § 12,988,013 $ 13,343,961

. This'year’s additidns to b',erinclulded on the dep’repiétibﬁ schedule: |

Genéral Fﬁnd

Town office concept plan - T 8 52985
. Bonnie’s sidewalk connector ~ © 13,852
Town Square = S 31,000

- N. Church St. Improvements ==~~~ 24430

.+ - Total general funcli‘ SR ' $ 122267

B .Water/Se‘vweijFund T S
Sludge pufnp'modiﬁcations i S 0§ 9881l
Water/sewer Master plan S 40,065

‘ - Total water/sewer fund -~ ~  § 138876
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Debt

At year-end the Town. had $4, 510,841 in. outstandmg loans compared to $5 049 683 last year. Thrs isa decrease of -
- 10.67 percent as shown in the followmg table. ‘

Governmental' L BusineSs-Type . :
Activities . Activities' " Totals S
2018 2017 . - _ 2018 2017 2018 2017
‘Bonds Payable: -

General obligation - ' : 5 S . _
~‘bonds - . § 1490 000 $ 1,575, 000 $ 785 690 $ 1,197,4_38 -$ 2,275,690 $ 2,772,438,
Revenuebonds - . 2,005,000 2,005,000 2,005,000 2,005 000

. Premiumon = o L |
| bondissuance __ 16,636 __ 18300 _ 213515 253945 _ 230151 272045

‘Totals - LMLMLLM&L&MLMM@

No new debt was 1ssued durmg the year ended June 30 201 8.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET AND RATES )
‘ ; The Town antrcrpates a growmg economy w1th steady growth expected over the course. of the next year The :
followmg isa summary of the Town of Lovettsvrlle s budget for ﬁscal year 201 8-201 9 : .

~ e The budgeted revenues are set to decrease by approxlmately $22 OOO in the fiscal year endmg June 30, 2019
- The removal of the cell tower lease revenue has removed $60,000 of revenue in the budget. This.i is offset
with a $20,000 increase in expected meals tax and an expected increase of $15,000 in real estate tax revenue. -

The remamder of the budgeted revenue is very 81m11ar to the: previous ﬁscal budget ' :

e ’The budgeted expenses are also setto’ remain farrly consistent with the previous fiscal year Refuse service is
- budgeted to decrease by $10,000 in the- upcoming fiscal year.  The. Town has budgeted an additional $5,000

" for debt reduction due to loan commitments. for. the upcommg ﬁscal year.. The remamder of the budgeted
_expenses is very srrmlar to the prev10us ﬁscal budget : ‘

o The budgeted revenue in the ut111ty fund is’ expected to mcrease fa1r1y srgmﬁcantly The Town is prOJectmg

‘ an increase of $148,300 in water availability fee revenye and $216,700 in sewer availability fee revenue: The
Town is also pro;ectrng that water and sewer connection fees will increase by $44, 000. The Town is
contmumg to grow and has reﬂected this growth in the upcommg ﬁscal year budget

e The budgeted expenses remain farrly steady in the’ upcormng year in response to the budgeted revenues. The

- extra revenue that the Town plans to see wrth the growth forecasted in the budget is going into reserve funds o

*for future projects by the Town. The excess’ ‘cash going into the reserve funds. will be divided among the V
operating cash surplus fund, the rainy day reserve fund, the IRM reserve fund the sewer avallabrlrty fee
reserve fund, and the ‘water avallablhty fee reserve fund : .

'In conclusron, the proposed budget is balanced in accordance wrth state statutes, and revenues based on’
~ conservatlve estunates, whlle expendrtures are based on hrstorrcal data -as well as actual proposed costs.

' _CONTACTING THE TOWN’S F]NANCIAL MANAGEMENT

: Th1s ﬁnancral report is designed to prov1de our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and credrtors with a general overview
+ of the Town’s finances and to show the Town’s accountabrhty for the money it receives. If you have any questions .

about this report or need addrtlonal 1nformat10n, contact the Town Ofﬁce at 6 East Pennsylvama Avenue, -
Lovettsville, VA. o y ,
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRG]NIA

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
‘ June 30, 2018 ‘

ASSETS
" Cash and cash equxvalents
"-Receivables:
‘Property taxes
: Utlhty taxes
" Accounts -
_"Meals and occupancy :
o Due from other govemmental umts o
~ -Prepaid expense - -
- Internal balances
.- Capital assets: .~
’ Non-depreclable

Depreclable, net of accumulated depreclatlon )

Net pens1on asset
- Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
- Deferred pension amounts
Deferred OPEB amounts, lifei msurance |
Deferred charges on refundlng :

: Total deferred outﬂows of resources ‘

; LIABILITIES ‘
- - ~Accounts payable
"Accrued liabilities - ‘
‘Accrued interest payable -
Compensated absences _
 Deposits
" Long-term habllltxes, . oo
- Net OPEB liability, life i msurance
Long-term debt due within one year
Due in more than one year .

' Total hablhtles

" DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES '
‘Unavailable revenue . .

~ Deferred pension amounts .
Deferred OPEB amounts llfe msurance

‘k ‘ " Total deferred inflows of resources
NET POSITION
" Net 1nvestments in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net_posi'tion< '

See Notes to,FinanciaI Statements.

'Govern‘mental _ Business-Type

Total -

5000

Actlvmes .- __Activities
R 451 808 $] 2,251,410 ' $ 3703218
X R 629,759 .
12160 - 1216
285 193732194017
119,933 . 19,933
38,457 - 38,457
4805 1,992 6,387
CS1377 . (521,377) S
1,047,959 154200 1,202,159
3208221  BA487.633  11,785.854
11607 13250 24357
'$ 7025517 $ 10580840 $ 17.606357 -
$ 51670 $ 19282 § 70,952
- 1213 631 1,844
- 125846 __ 125846
8 52883 § 145750 § 198,642
C$ 20807 § 19543 $ . 40350 -
16523 . 14805 . 31,328
27,029 11,627 38,656
638 . 1737 42375
. ;2400 72,400
28277 14723 43,000
91664 - 405200 496,954
1414972 2598916 4013888
8 1633910 $ 3145041 $ 4778951
$ 601,86 $ - § 601,826
14026 7,031 21,087
| 3.288 1712
S 619140 S 8743 S 627883
$ 2812515 $ 5626000 $ 8438515
2012835 1946815 _ 3959650
5 482 5350 g* 7,572,815

'$ 12,308,165






,Net (Expense) Revenue and Changes in Net Assets

.------——’--i—-

'Governmental
_Activities

Primary. Government
Business-Type

s (864,132)
T (15.591)

1 (34,593)
6,500

(111,781)

Actmtles

- (864,132)
S Qas591) -
(34,593)
(111,781)

(60,360)

(60,360) -

8 (1079951 8.

(1.079.957)

320304 §

320304 §

329394

-. 329‘.394

$ (1079957

$ - 587,709
12,171

27424

15122

329394  §

25,754
sy

' (750.563)

587,709

530,081
37,925 -

27,424

15,122

1 196, 546 L

$ 1172507
8 9550

4 732 800

7219382

24030 §

353433 §

: 445983 L

11952182

§;==;1gg;;;;g .

7,572,815

(1.715)
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA |

---GOVERNMENTAL FUND—
'BALANCE SHEET =~
 June 30, 2018

: ~ General -

. Fund
ASSETS - : ' LT R ' S
. Cash and cash equlvalents B ‘ L . % 1,451,808
Receivables: = Co T e R
‘Property taxes = T [P PP ,‘ 629,759
 Utility taxes - SRt IR ‘ C 1216
~Meals and occupancy PR [ S 19,933
Accounts o T R 285 -

. Prepaid expense -~ - ' : S ST 4895

- »Due from other governmmtal units - Do : : - 38,457

. Due frOmother funds o oL 521,377

, Totalpssets .. - 61T

| LIABILITIES DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES ]
ANDFUNDBALANCE o S

"—Llabllitles’ _ L R : A e C T e
" Accounts payable - o S 820,807
Accrued liabilities * S L . 16,523
" Compensated absences o ‘ B e 4778 ,
._Total Iiabiliﬁes’_ N : U R o $ ‘4‘2,1"078
" Deferred Ihﬂdws of Resources ' PR R S =
- Uh‘available revenue - . - ; S e 8 629,496
Total deferred mﬂows of resources ;.' I _ § : "6'29,4_96ﬂ .-
Totalhablhtles T T U 8 671,604
Fund B'elance 7 ‘ _
Nonspendable: .~ ; S o S
~ Prepaiditems .-~ . o SR $ 4895
- Committed: s " Tl
Capltal project — Loudon St nnprovcments T . 82,400
UnaSSIgned i PR , o _1,908.831
‘ Totalfundbalance 8 1996126
Total llabllltles, deferred mﬂows of resources, and fund balance ,§ 2f,‘ggz,z§g N

See Notes to Fina'neial,'Statements.




TOWN OF’L‘OVETTSVILLE ViRGlNIA ‘

—-GOVERNMENTAL FUND-—- .
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

June 30, 2018
FUNI) BALAN CE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of
net pos1t10n are drfferent because: .. - : :

R ,Capltal assets. used in governmental act1v1t1es are not financial

- resources and therefore are not. reported in the governmental fund

G‘overnrrwntal capltal assets
Less accumulated deprematlon ,

) Noncurrent assets are not due and recervable in the current .

~period and thercfore are not reported in the gov_ernmental fund. ‘

$ 11,607 =

Net'pension asset '

= ~'Deferred outﬂows of resources for pensmn and llfe
insurance amounts ' : :

Deferred 1nﬂows of resources for pensron and hfe '
Insurance amounts , '

, Certam revenues not available to pay for eurrent period
- expendltures are not reported in the governmental fund

Deferred revenue, property taxes . "

Long—term habrhtres mcludmg bonds payable, are not due and
payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported
in the funds. All liabilities, - both current and long-term are
reported in the Statement of Net Pos1t10n ‘

»General oblrgatlon bonds '

Premium on bond issuance

. Accrued interest payable -
‘Compensated absences = - -
Net OPEB 11ab1hty, hfe 1nsurance -

_ NET POSITION OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

" See Notes to’ Financial Statenrent'sr

$ 4 793,266

L a4T086)

$ 52883

S8 (1314)

$ 27670

o

o $(1,490,000)

~ (16,636)
(27,029)

S (29.860)
_(28271)

Pa_ge 15 f '

$.1,996,126

4,346,180

11,607

© 52883

(17,314)

27670

| _(1.591.802)

§4825350



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA
. —GOVERNMENTAL FUND— _
'STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
Year Ended June 30, 2018 ‘ :

“General

: Fund '

General propertytaxes ST B o L C e $ 576,901

" Other local taxes v ‘ L 530 ,081
,Permlts, privilege fees, and regulatory licenses - SRR 25058
~Revenues from the use of money and property . R S i
- Charges for services . - o S 23,022

" 'Miscellaneous - S S 2;7,424

Intergovernmental reVenues R B B S e
Commonwealth .~~~ 3 35122

County ‘ ; oo o o 151,039

Totalrevenues S T R T $» 1,380,818
‘EXPENDITURES T o

Current . : e R
~"General government admlmstratlon o S oo 8 832,734
Community development = B O R o L 40,649
Parks, recreation and cultural : I C 34,593
" Public safety . - L L : 13,500

Publicworks = -~ T 186,190

Debtsemce T B R ' 148621 B

Capxtal outlay- ' - ' ' 126,167

Totalexpendltures o .‘ e e | $ 1,382,454’
ExceSS (deﬁ01ency) of rcvenues oyer expendltures ; S $ (1,636) y »
7 , Netchangemfundbalance L - B $ (1 636)
"V,FUNDBALANCEATBEGINNINGOFYEAR 1991762
;FUNDBAL’ANCEATEND_(_)‘F;YEAR o VT § 1,996,126 .

' See Notes to Financial Statements,

Page16
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' TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA .
. —-GOVERNMENTAL FUND—

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,

AND CHANGES IN THE FUND BALANCE OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUND

. -TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
: Year Ended June 30, 2018 '

NET CHANGEINFUND BALANCE TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND 8 (1636

Amounts reported for govemmental act1v1t1es in the statement of
' activities are dlfferent because

The govemmental fund reports capltal‘outiays as expend'ltures =
- .However, in the statement of activities, the cost of those assets '
is deprec1ated over the estlmated useful 11ves "

Expendltures for capltal assets . R T 126,167

Less current year depreclatlon p’ DRSS - (117.840) 8,327 ;

'Loan proceeds provide current financial resources to the A
. governmental fund, but issuing debt increases long-term -
~ liabilities in the statement of net position. Repayment of
.. loan principal is an expenditure in the governmental fund,
" butthe repayment reduces long—term 11ab111t1es in the
A statement of net pos1t10n ’

| Pr1n01palrepayments [ SR $ 85000 85000

o Some revenues reported in the statement of act1v1t1es do not
‘provide current financial resources and therefore are not
- reported as revenues in the governmental fund Th1s amount
" is the net change in these revenues, .

Propertytaxes{ - S o . $ 10,’898 K ©10,808 :
: Some expenses reported'inthe statement of activities do no_t v‘ |

_require the use of current financial resources and therefore are -
not reported as expendltures in the governmental fund

Changelnaccrued interest o 8 3,260

- Difference between pens1on expendltures and L

_pension expense - - oo 1,889 ' -
' Changemlong—term compensated absences . oo (15,098) - . (9,949)

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS OF GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVIT[ES R $ 955

. See Notes to Financial Statements.
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, TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE V]RGINIA

—— PROPRIETARY FUND —
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
June 30 2018

: Enterprise Fund o

Water & Sewer -

ASSETS S S ,

Current assets; B R : S e
Cash and cash equlvalents o R oL 8- 2251410 0
‘Accounts receivable =~ - R U oo 193,732
Prepaid expense ‘ L ol - 1992
' Total current assets ST ¥ T -8 2447134

' ‘N‘oncurrent assets:
Capital aSsets C g N B
© . Land " o - B - 8 154200
. Utility plant, dlstnbutlonand TR oL R
~ collection systems = Dol T : L 13,973,304
~ Less accumulated deprecratlon Ce e S . __(5.485.671) .-
) R o T8 18,641,833

| ~Net pens10n asset - 13,250

Totalnoncurrentassets R "8,65:5,083-:7

Totalassets . e s tideeas

‘DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES - : S A
- Deferred pension amounts : N 7 $ 19282
- Deferred OPEB, life insurance R Lo 631
Deferred charges onrefunding - : = = R IR . 125,846
Total deferred outﬂows of resources S $. 145759
LIABILITIES
L Currenthablhtles N R I S
- Accounts payable . e I 8 19,543 .
" Accrued liabilities = . : B S S . 14,805 -
Accrued interest payable - ' : SR o 11,627
Deposits . -~ s o SRS S T2,400
. Due to other funds - - B Y. /¥ 1
. Net OPEB liability, life insurance- * = = - (RS 14,723
- Bonds, notes and loans payable = .~ . S 405,290
Compensated absences . .t - . : R - 1,737

Total current liabilities i T $ 1;067,502 :

Noncurrent 11ab111t1es : : o o
‘Bonds, notes and loans. payable, current portlon o $ 2, 598 916 -
Total noncurrent hab111t1es : $ 2 598 916 -
Total liabilitles s 3,6‘66.4118*
" DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES | R |
* Deferred pension amounts , L 8 7031
, Deferred ‘OPEB amounts, life i msurance T ST 17 12
Total deferred mﬂows of resources N . . L5 $v.‘ . 8.743

(Contmued)
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA - |
" —— PROPRIETARY FUND —
~ STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - U
- June30 2018 B L e ey

 Enterprise Fund

NET POSITION

- Netmvestmentlncapltalassets I o ‘, 7 g 5,_626,000"\"
: Unrestncted . - L

o _Totzil'netrposi‘rti‘oh | S o S 7,572,81

L 7 See Notes to FinancialfStatéments.‘



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRG]NIA
—PROPRIETARY FUND--

Page 20

. STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES

AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
' Year Ended June 30 2018

: OPERATING REVENUES
- 'Charges for services. "~
Late charges
- Connection fees , _
Frye Court Service Dlstrlct tax
Reimbursemernt developers
: Mlscellaneous
‘ Total operatmg revenues :

OPERATING EXPENSES
-~ Persorinel services.

- Contractual services .

- Repairs and mamtenance o

. Utilities
. Communications .
: Insurance -

Miscellaneous - :

‘Supplies and equlpment
’ Deprematlon

‘Total operatmg expenses

Operatmg mcome (loss)

o NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE)

- (Loss) on disposal of equipment
Lease of water tower space

.- Interest income

Interest expense -

Total nonoperatmg revenues (expense)v _

> Income (loss) before contnbutlons_
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Sewer availability fees
. Water ava1lab1hty fees o
\ ~ Total capital contributio'ns'
T Change mnet posmon
NET POSITION AT BEG]NN]NG OF YEAR X

* NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR o

See Notes to Financial Statements.

" Enterprise Fund

Water & :Sewer .

81022322

19,048
76,000
2477

5,700
6258

-3 1I31.805

$. . 369377
73,793

- 193,518
59,897

" 6,045
21,725
12,183
70,650 -
402,472

§ 1209660 .

soansy

78,746
25,754
(91.,497)

R TV T U

8. (66567)

§ . 249900
' 170,100 .

8 420000
§ 353433

7.219,382

$ 7572815
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. TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA |
 _-PROPRIETARY FUND—
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

'Year Ended June 30, 2018

‘ Enterpﬁse Fund

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
- Cash payments to suppliers of goods and serv1ces ‘
Cash payments to employees .

Net cash provrded by (used m) operatmg act1v1t1es

,, CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINAN CING ACTIVITIES '

Payment from other fund

, Net cash provrded by (used 1n) noncap1ta1 ﬁnancmg act1v1t1es ’

. CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
- FINANCING ACTIVITIES s
Principal payments on long-term debt
- Interest payments on long-term debt
- Rental income '
" ‘Purchase of property, plant and equrpment
~Sewer availability fees
Water avallabrhty fees -

' Net cash provrded by (used m) caprtal and related -
ﬁnancmg act1v1t1es _ o

: .-CASH FLOWS FROM lNVESTING ACTIVITIES
‘ Interest earned from mvestments

' Net cash prov1ded by (used 1n) mvestmg actlvrtles

Net increase (decrease) in cash and
cash equlvalents :

'_Cash and cash equivalents:
"~ Beginning - ‘
Ending

' (Continrue'd)‘

;Wat‘er & Sewer

$ 1,129,301

(441,279)

| (368.626)
$ 319396

$ 1,681,014

S 1681014

s ‘(41'1 748)

(110,444)
78,746

C(40,065)

$249,900°
170,100

s s

'$ . 25754

S8 osasa

$ 1,962,653

288,757

2251410



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA |

—-PROPRIETARY FUND--—- :
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
- Year Ended June 30, 2018

'Eliterp'ris‘e Fund

o , " Water & Sewer

'RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING - |
- INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH

PROVIDED BY (USED IN)

'OPERATING ACTIVITIES o = ' o
Operating income (loss) = E T . & (77,855)
AdJustments to reconcile operating - Lo SR e

income (loss) to net cash provided by N |
(used in) operating activities: - , T o
Life insurance costs (earnings)- R : ) S 52

' Pension costs (earnings) - - R (733)
- Depreciation - .. o S 4024720
Changemassets and hablhtles , R - R
" (Increase) decrease in accounts recexvable S S (6304

 (Increase) decrease in prepaid expense L L (356) .

- Increase (decrease) in-accounts

_payable and accrued expenses ’ » B e '  '(1,680)" S

Increase (decrease) in deposits . 3.800

Net cashprowdedby (used 1n) operatmg activities = R o $ - 31779.3916_.'7‘

_ See Notes to Financial Statements. B
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- TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA_

V : --FIDUCIARY FUNDS-—
STATEMENTS OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
’ June 30, 2018 R,

Reviewed (Unaudited)
Mayfest . _ Oktoberfest

ASSETS
, Gash .

37072 . $ 43074 -

- Total assets

em

37072 $ 43074
~ LIABILITIES S T
Amounts held forothers -~~~ - 8 37072 $- 43074

ol

" Total liabilities s wom 43,074

Se,e‘Notés to Fin'ancial Statements. B
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE V[RGINIA

o ---FIDUCIARY FUNDS---
STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN FI])UCIARY NET POSITION
Year Ended June 30, 2018

B Revnewed (Unaudxted)
_Mayfest - __Oktoberfest

ADDITIONS o S 0 o T
- Spomsorship. L E e $ 14,004 % - 14,609
" Vendors - L5931 14127
Beer S 5570 . 127,657~
Souvenirs N e 18,200
 Total additions S $ 025595 0§ 174593 -

* DEDUCTIONS T TR
. Administrative expenses' e o8 221 $ - 15,759
. Servicefees - I , e 80
- Costofsales < oo 10,544
o Cost of beer j ' R L 707 56,655
~ Donations o Co e . 250 - 2,500 ¢
. Entertainment-. . . . . ... 5588 . o 15843
© Advertising R S 1,236 S 12,481
-~ Miscellaneous R, SERE 5999 . o -
‘Siteexpense . . - T 44,149
" Permits S 100 .
“"Reunbursement-general o 386 -
“Rent S R _ 2,405 .0 -
Supphes 2,504 e
' Total deductlons S S 8. 20416 § 158011

Changes mnetposntlon N o N 5,179 $ g :16’582', T |

NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 31893 26492

VNETPOSITIONATENDOFYEA‘R L8 3om 8 43014

" 'See Notes to Finahciai Statements. -
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA |
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Sigmﬁcant Accountmg Pohcles

The financial statements of the Town of Lovettsville, Virginia, conform to generally accepted accountmg
principles (GAAP) applicable to government units promulgated by the Governrnental Accountmg
~Standards Board (GASB) The followmg isa summary of the most sxgmﬁcant pohcles '

‘A. Reportmg Entlty
_ The Town of Lovettsvﬂle, Vlrglma, is a mum<:1pahty govemed by a stx-member Town Councﬂ and

Mayor. Daily operations are conducted by the Town Manager. ' In determlmng the reporting entity, | .
the Town complies with the prov1s10ns of GASB Statement No. 14, “The Financial Reporting

Entity.”. Based on the criteria provrded in that Statement there are no agencles or enttttes that should
- be presented wrth the- Town

4B Governmental Accountmg Standards "

The Town follows the general prows1ons of GASB Statement No. 34 Basic ananczal Statements -
" and Management s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments.: Th1s Statement

1dent1ﬁes the financial reportmg requnements of state and local governments

- C Government-Wlde and Fund Flnanclal Statements

7 The government-wde fmanclal statements (e, the Statement of Net Pos1t10n and the Statement of> :

' Act1v1t1es) display information about the reporting government as a whole. For the most part, the

 effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. ‘Governmental activities, which’
- normally are:supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from

= -busmess type act1v1t1es whlch rely to a s1gmﬁcant extent on fees and charges for support

" The Statement of Actlvttres demonstrates the degree to whmh the d1rect expenses of a given function

or identifiable activity are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are. clearly-

.identifiable with a specific function or identifiable activity. Program revenues include (1) charges to
" customers or apphcants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
- provided by a given functionor identifiable activity and (2) grants and contributions that are
restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a. particular function or identifiable

* activity, Taxes and other items not properly mcluded among program revenues are repoxted mstead

‘as general I'CVCI'lllCS

. Separate ﬁnancral statements are prov1ded for govemmental funds and propnetary funds. Major' :
" individual governmental funds and major mdtvtdual enterane funds are reported as separate |

columns in the fund ﬁnanclal statements

D Measurement Focus, Basns of Accountmg, and Fmanclal Statement Presentatlon

" The accounts of the Town are orgamzed on the basis of funds each of which is consrdered a separate ,
.accounting entity. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing -

: _accounts ‘that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, révenues, and expendltures or expenses, as
appropriate.- Governmental resources are allocated to and accounted for in individual funds based

“upon. the purposes. for which they are to be spent and the means by Wthh spendlng act1v1t1es are

‘ ‘ controlled
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' NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

: Note 1.  Summary of Sigiiific'ant Acé_ounting Policies ‘(Co'ntiniléd),:

* Government-Wide Financial Statements -

~The .Town r‘government-Widc financial - statements inélu‘de? a Statement of Net ‘Position and a

Statement of Activities, These statements present summaries of governmental and business-type -

activities for the Town accompanied by a total column.

* These statements are presented on an “economic resources” measurement focus'and the accrual basis =
of accounting. Accordingly, all of the Town’s assets and liabilities, including capital assets as wellds
 infrastructure assets and long-term liabilities, are included in the accompanying Statement of Net -

"' Position. The Statement of Activities presents changes in net position. Under the accrual basis of -

"-accounting, revenues are recogtized in the period in which they are earned while expenses are

recognized in the period in which the liability is incurred. The types of transactions reported as_

* program revenues for the Town' are reported in three categories: (1) charges. for services, (2)
_operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions. = -~ . :

’ Governmentgl Fund Financial‘Stater‘ne_hts" -

o ZGoverhmghtal,'fund financial statements include a Balance ‘Sheet énd,a Statement ‘of Revenues,

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances for all major governmental funds and non-major funds -

. aggregated. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in fund
~ balances and changes in fund balances. as presented in these statements to the net position and
changes in net position presented in the government-wide financial statements. - SR

All governmental funds are accounted for on a spending or “current financial ‘resources”

‘measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting, Accordingly, only current assets

and current liabilities are included on the Balance Shects. The Statement of Revenues, Expenditures
and Changes in Fund Balances presents increases (revenues and other financing sources) and -

decreases (expenditures and other financing uses) in net current assets. Under the modified accrual

basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the accounting period in which they become both .
" measurable and available to finance expenditures of the current period. Accordingly, revenues are’
* recorded when received in cash, except that revenues subject to accrual (generally 45 days after year- )
end) are recognized when due. The primary revenue sources, which have been treated as susceptible

' to accrual by the Town, are property taxes, sales and use taxes, intergovernmental revenues and other

incurred. .

. taxes. Expenditures are recorded in the accounting period in which the related fund liability is:

The General Fund is the Town’s ‘only 'goizer‘nmenfal fund. Tt accounts for all fmanciél'resourccs of - '

. the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. -

" Proprietary Fund Financial Statements

Proprietary fund financial statements include a Staterent of Net Position, a Statement of Revenues,

- Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position, and a Statement of 'Cash Flows for each major
pr’o\prie@aryfund.’, IR L

Proprietary funds are accounted for using the “économic resources” measurement focus and the

accrual basis of accounting. Accordingly, all assets and liabilitiés (whether current or noncurrent) are

included on the Statement of Net Position, The Statement of Revenies, Expenses and Changes in S

Fund Net Position presents increases (revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net position. Under

expenses are recognized in the period in which the yl_ia‘bil'ity is incurred. -

the accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized in the period in which they are earned while
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NOTES TO FINAN‘CIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Sngmﬁcant Accountmg Pollcles (Contmued)

_Operating revenues in the propnetary ‘funds are those revenues that are generated from the primary

operations.’of the fund. All other revenues are reported as non-operating revefues. Operating

N ~expenses are those expenses that are essential to the pnmary operatlons of the fund All other

!

E Assets, Llablhtres and Eqmty

. expenses are reported as non-operatmg expenses
B The Town reports the, followmg major proprletary fund

~ Water and Sewer Fund-accounts for the activities related to the prowsron of water and sewer services

to Town’s busmesses, residents, schools, and churches. The Town operates and maintains its wells

~ and water drstrrbutlon system, and its sewer treatment plant and sewer. collection system.

: Flducrary Funds Fm@cral Statement

The Town s ﬁduclary funds are presented in the fund ﬁnanelal statements by type (agency) Smce o
by defmltlon these assets are being held for the benefit of a third party and cannot be used to address.
activities or obligations of the government these funds are not mcorporated into the governmental-

»w1de ﬁnancral statements

, F1duc1ary funds are used to account for assets held by the Town in a trustee capaclty or as agent for .
- individuals, pnvate organizations, and other governments. The ﬁducrary funds of the Town are the
Mayfest and Oktoberfest Funds.. Smce these funds are custodial in’ nature (1 e, assets equal o

liabilities), they do not mvolve the measurement of results of operat1ons o

= ‘ Cash and Cash Equlvalents

For purposes of reportmg cash- flows, the Town cons1ders all cash on hand checkmg accounts .

- savings accounts, money market funds and highly hqu1d instruments with a maturity of three months '

~or less to be cash and cash equivalents. All certificates of déposit, regardless of ‘maturity, are
T cons1dered to be cash and cash equlvalents ' L D P

Recelvables .

 Inthe government-w1de statements, recelvables cons1st of all revenues eamed at year-end and not yet

received. Allowances for uncollectible accounts receivable are based upon historical collection data
and specific account. analysis. Major receivable balances for the governmental activities include .
sales and use taxes and utility taxes. Business-type activities report utility services as their major,

- “receivable. The Town grants credit to the customers of 1ts water and sewer: systems The customers

. are either local busmesses or res1dents

- In the fund ﬁnanc1al statements major recelvable balances and the allowances for uncollectlble )
“accounts are the same as those in the govemmental and busmess -type actlvmes :

'Y'Property Taxe -

_ 'Real estate taxes are assessed annually by Loudoun County, Vlrgrma, for all property of record asof

January 1. Property taxes attach as an enforceable lien on -property as ‘of January 1. The Town

collects real estate taxes on an annual basis (due December 5). The portion of the tax receivable that

is not collected within 45 days after June 30 is shown as deferred revenue in the fund finaricial

~ statements, The tax rate assessed for the year ended June 30, 2018, was $.21 per $100 valuatlon A

penalty of 10 percent of the tax is assessed after the apphcable payment date.

The taxes recelvable balance at June 30 2018 includes amounts not yet billed or recelved from the

- January 1, 2018, levy (due December 5, 2018). These items are included in deferred revenue since
- these taxes are restricted for use untll ﬁscal year 2019. ' :
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- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1Nofe L.~ Summary of Significdnt A‘ccounting Policies (Continued)

v The Town calculates its allowance for unicollectible delinquent prdpe’rty,tax accounts using historical

. collection data and specific account analysis. No allowance was deemed necessary at June 30, 2017.
‘ Piv‘gpi aid Items | | |

Certain payments to ‘vendors reflect chts applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as
prepaid items.- o A S SR P

."Interﬁmvd Reéeiyableé and Pav_abies ‘ \ !

. Durixig the éoursé of operafions,",tranSactions.dc'ctir that may result in amounts owed between funds.‘\ '
Those related to goods ahd service type transactions are classified as “due to and from other funds.”
Short-term interfund loans are reported as “interfund receivables and payables.” Long-term interfund. -

* loans (noncurrent portion) are reported as “advances from and to other funds.” Interfund receivables

and payables between funds are eliminated in the Statement of Net Position. 'The Town’s General .

" Fund hasa due from the Water and Sewer Fund in the amount of $521,377 at June 30, 2018.

Fiied Assets .

The acc‘:'oﬁnting‘,t‘reatment‘i over propérty, plant, and eQdipmeﬁt‘ (ﬁxed éssets) (_lepehds,on whether the -
~ assets are used in the governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operations and whether they

© - arereported in the government-wide or fund financial statements.

i Gévemhzen{:ﬂ’ide Stateme(its ‘

. Inthe government—Wide'fmancial stétémems,' fixed assets are acéounted fbr 'a‘s;capit;al assets. Capital B
assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads, bridges, '

- sidewalks and similar items owned by the Town), are reported .in the applicable governmental or

. business-type activities columns. In general, the Town defines capital assets as assets with an initial, .-
individual cost of more than $5,000 (not roundéd) and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. -

Capital assets are carried at historical cost except for donated capital assets that are recorded at their

estimated fair value on the date received.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs are charged‘to operations as incuﬂed."hnpro{'ements are

" capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related fixed assets, as applicable.

‘Depreciation of all exhaustible fixed assets is recorded as an allocated expense in the Statement of L
Activities with accumulated depreciation reflected in the Statement of Net Position.” Depreciation is
~ provided over the assets™ estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of depreciation. The -

range of estimated useful lives by type of asset is as follows:

Buildings and Improvements .~ - - 30-50 years
Land improvements . .~ -~ 20 years -
Utility System =~~~ - 25-40 years '
Machinery and Equipment. ~ ~ ~ = 5-10 years

- Infrastructure ' - o »

20-40 years
Fund Financial Statements | o
Inthe‘ﬁmd,y financial ,stétemqnts, fixed assets used in governmental fund opefatiohs are accounted for

as capital outlay expenditures of the governmental fund upon acquisition. Fixed assets used in
proprietary fund operations are accounted for the same as in the government-wide statements. -
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7 NOTES TO FINAN CIAL STATEMENTS’ ‘
‘_ Note 1. Summary of Slgmﬁcant Accountmg Pollcles (Continued)

Comnensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave is reported as an expense in the Statement of Activities and a
long-term obhgatlon in the Statement of Net Position. In accordance with' the provisions of
Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 16, Accountmg Jor Compensated Absences, -
.no hablhty is recorded for nonvesting accumulating rights’ to’ receive sick: pay benefits. However, a
_ liability is recognized for that portlon of accumulating sick leave benefits that is estimated will be paid. .

" upon retirement, which is liquidated in the Town general fund. Sick leave is paid upon: separatlon of ,
employment with the Town up to an amount equal to 25 percent of the unused balance

Deferred Revenue

Deferred revenue is recorded when asset recogmtlon crrtena (measurable) have been met, but revenue
recogmtlon (avallable) cntena have not been met :

BN

Long-Term Debt |

The accountmg treatment of the long-term “debt depends on whether the assets are- used in
- governmental fund operations or proprietary fund operatrons and whether they are reported in the
government-w1de or fund ﬁnancml statements. ,

All long-term debt to be repa1d from governmental and busmess type resources is reported as 11ab111t1es
in the government-wide statements The long-term debt ‘consists pnmanly of bonds loans and notes' ‘
payable ' : )

AN

Long-term debt For governmental funds is not reported as l1ab111t1es in the fund fmanclal statements

. The ‘debt proceeds are reported as' other financing sources and payment of pnnclpal and interest-:

: reported as expendltures The accounting for the proprietary ﬁmds is the same-in the fund ﬁnanmal :
C statements as it is in the government-w1de statements r . o R ’

Deferred Outflows/Inﬂows of Resources

.In addltlon to assets the statement of net pos1t1on or balance sheet will sometlmes report a separate
section’ for deferred outflows' of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred
~ outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so
will not be recoghized as an outflow of resources (expense/expendlture) until then.” The Town has
three items that qualify for reporting in this category. One-item is the deferred charge on refunding
“reported in the. government-w1de statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results
from the difference in ‘the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is
- deferred and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refundlng debt. The other two

" “items are: deferred ‘pension and OPEB amounts . ‘ -

In addltlon to hablhtres, the statement of net pos1tlon or balance sheet w1ll sometimes report a separate B

- section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows
of resources, tepresents an acquisition of net position that apphes to a future period(s) and so will not
be recognized as ‘an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town currently has four items -
(property taxes, vehicle license brllmg, and deferred pensmn and OPEB amounts) that quahfy for -
reportmg in thxs category .

7
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Significant iAcc‘ou,nt'ing Policies (Continued)

Equity Classiﬁcatlons
Governrrtent- Wide Statements . .
' Equrty is classrﬁed as net pos1t1on and drsplayed in three components

a Net mvestment in caprtal assets-consrsts of the h1storrcal cost- of capital assets less
accumulated deprecratlon and less any debt that remains outstanding that was used to finance

those assets plus deferred outﬂows of resources less deferred mﬂows of resources related to

. those assets

b, Restrrcted net posrtron-consrsts of assets wrth constraints placed on the use cither by (l)‘ o

external- groups such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
. governments; or.(2) law through constitutional provisions ‘or -enabling legislation, These
- assets are reduced by habrlrtres and deferred 1nﬂows of resources related to those assets.
c. Unrestncted—all other net posrtron 1s reported in th1s category
Fund Statements |

In the governmental fund financial statements, fund balances are class1ﬁed as follows

. Nonspendable Amounts that cannot be spent erther because they arein a nonspendable form - |

or because they are legally or contractually requlred to be maintained mtact

: 'o“ Restrlcted Amounts that can be spent only for specific purposes because of the Town Charter,

the Town Code, state or federal laws, or externally nnposed condltrons by grantors or credrtors

. "—Commltted Amounts that can be used only for specrﬁc purposes determmed by a formal

S actlon by Town Councﬂ ordinance or resolution.” Th1s mcludes the Budget Reserve Account
, . ‘Asslgned Amounts that are desrgnated by the Town Counc11 for a partlcular purpose but are
* not spendable until a budget ordinance is passed or there isa maJorrty vote approval (for capital
: prOJects or debt servrce) by Town Councrl , , .
e Unasslgned All amounts not mcluded in other spendable classrﬁcatlons

Propnetary fund equlty is’ class1ﬁed the same as 1n the government-wrde statements

F Revenues, Expendltures, and Expenses ‘ ‘

i
i

» As mentioned above govemmental f\md revenues are recogmzed in the accountmg penod in whrch.«

they become both measurable and available to ﬁnance expendltures of the current perlod

r_Accordmgly, property taxes not collected ‘within . 45 days aﬁer year-end are. reﬂected as deferred '

revenues-uncollected property taxes. The Town recogmzes sales and utility taxes remltted to the Town
as revenues and receivables in the month preceding receipt. Licenses and permits’ are recorded as

revenues when received, Intergovernmental revenues, consisting pnmarrly of Federal, State and other

grants for the purpose of fundmg speclﬁc expendrtures, are recognized when earned or at the time of
specific expendrture S
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Summary of Slgmficant Accountmg Pohcles (Contmued)

. Operatmg Revenues and Expenses

Operating revenues and expenses for propnetary funds are those that result from prov1dmg services and ‘

producing and. delivering goods -and/or services. They also include all revenue and expenses not

- ,,related to capital and related financing, noncapltal ﬁnancmg, or. 1nvest1ng activities.

o Sewer and Water Ava1lab111ty Fees

. Sewer and water avarlablhty fees are recorded as revenue when recelved Fees recorded: in the Water

" and Sewer Fund are shown as capltal contributions ' in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and

. Changes in Fund Position. The same fees are presented in the government-wide Staternent ‘of Activities
“as capital grants-and contributions: Council has designated that the sewer availability fees will be used -

to pay debt incurred in building the wastewater treatment plant and other sewer system improvements.

The Council has also desrgnated that the water avallablllty fees will be used to-pay for future water |

system 1mprovements

- 'Expendltures/Expenses

- In the government-wide fmancral statements, expenses are class1ﬁed by functlon for both govemmental :
and busmess-type aot1v1tles ' ,

In the fund’ fman01al staternents, expendltures are clas31ﬁed by funet10n for the governrnental fund and -
by operatmg and nonoperatmg for the proprietary funds :

In the fund fmanc1al statements, governmental funds report expendltures of ﬁnanclal resources
. Propnetary funds report expenses relatmg to the use of economic resources. ‘

o ,Interﬁmd Transfers

/ Permanent reallocatlon of resources between funds of the reportmg entrty are class1ﬁod as mterfund

transfers

‘ Advertrsmg

, The Town expenses advert1s1ng productlon costs as they are incurred and advertising commumcatron" ‘
“costs the first time the advertising takes place. Non-reimbursable advertising expendrtures in the =
General Fund were $6,328, for the year ended June 30,2018, Advert1s1ng expense i in the Water and

Sewer Fund was $500 for the year ended. June 30, 2018.

'Frmgebeneﬁt . ': ‘ T

Frmge beneﬁts of the Town mclude

~a. Social Security System All employees participate in the Federal Socral Securlty Program
~ The employer share of FICA taxes for the employees is the responsibility of the Town,

b Health Insurance - The Town provides health 1nsurance coverage for all electmg full-t1me ;

salaried permanent employees

~¢. Pension Plan Employees of the Town part1c1pate in the V1rg1n1a Retlrement System (VRS)

" The VRS is administered by the Commonwealth, which bills the Town for the employer share ‘
- of contributions. The VRS is obligated to pay a monthly benefit to part101pants upon ' -

- retirement with the amount of the benefit depending on length of service and earnings.
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* NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
N‘ote 1 Summary of Slgmficant Accountmg Pohcles (Contmued)

- G. Estimates and Assumptrons s

The preparatron of ﬁnancral statements in conformity w1th generally accepted accountmg pnnclples R

~requires the Town to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and
, dlsclosures Aceordmgly, actual results could drffer from those estnnates

' H. Use of Restncted/Unrestncted Net Assets

" When an expense is mcurred that can be pard using either restricted or unrestrrcted resources (net

position), the Town’s policy is to first apply the expense toward restricted resources and then toward
 unrestricted resources. In governmental funds, the Town’s policy is to first apply the expenditure - -
toward the restricted fund balance and then to other, less-restrictive clasmﬁcahons-comnntted and»‘.

' then asmgned fund balances before usmg unass1gned ﬁmd balances

L I’ensions

For purposes of measurmg the net penswnt/asset deferred outﬂows of resources and deferred mﬂows
of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of

‘the "Political Subdivision’s Retirement Plan, and the additions to/deductions from the Political
- Subdivision’s Retirement Plan’s net fiduciary position have been determined on the same basis-as

' they were reported by, the Virginia Retirement System (VRS). For this purpose, benefit payments
(including refunds of. employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
~ with the beneﬁt terms. lnvestments are reported at fair. value ' :

- F-J Group Life Insurance

1

-.The Vrrgrma Retxrement System (VRS) Group Llfe Insurance Program isa mult1ple employer cost- _'

‘sharing plan. -It provides coverage to state employees, teachers, and employees of participating

_political subdivisions. The Group Life Insurance Program was established pursuant to §51.1-500 et

- seq. of the Code of Virginia, as Mended and which provides the authonty under. which benefit
terms are established or may be amended.  The Group. Life Insurance Program is a defined benefit

. plan that provides a basic group life insurance benefit for employees'of participating employers. For’ .
~ purposes .of measuring the net Group Life Insurarice Program OPEB liability, deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB, and -

" GroupLife Insurance Program OPEB expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the
. Virginia Retirement System (VRS) Group Life Insurance program OPEB and the additions

to/deductions from the VRS Group Life Insurance Program OPEB’s net fiduciary position have been.

determined on the same basis as they were reported by VRS. In addition, benefit payments are

- recognized when due’ and payable in accordance w1th the beneﬁt terms, Investments are reported at.

fair, value _
: _ Note 2. . Stewardship, Comphance, and Accountabillty

A Budgetary Informatlon

An annual budget is adopted ona basrs consistent w1th generally’ accepted accountmg pnnclples for .

the General Fund. Amounts shown in the accompanymg financial statements as "budget" represent
the original and final operating budget for the fiscal year 2018, Below is a summary of budgeted

information which is not mcluded in the General Fund Statement of Revenues and Expend1tures -

. Budget
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NOTES TO0 FINANCIAL STATEMENTS o

" Note 2. Stewardshlp, Comphance, and Accountablhty (Contmued) S
y - 7 7 B - Original

& Final
- __Budget . -

*Annual contributions: - ’ S ,
" Debt retirement fund -~~~ %8 33,159
Operatmg cash fund - L DR 243,356

New capital fund =~ .. = o Lo (121,441)

JRM fund . - S (36,745

-Operating cash fund - ‘ * Coo 7 7(200,000) -
From utility fund, cell tower L 61,013

* Reimbursement from utility fund

158411

A budget is also adopted for the Enterpnse Fund as an operating gu1de11ne Budget to actual

information is- shown as other supplementary information. Below is a summary of budgeted

information that is not’ mcluded in the Enterpnse Fund's Statement of Revenues, Expenses and
' “Changes mNet Assets Budget . :

Originalr
“&Final
| ~ __Budget .
-Annual contributjons; . - R ‘ Lo R
- © Debt retirement fund . - T8 191,656
~° . Operatingcash fund. -~ = - C 304,961
 3RMfund - . T(158319)
‘Operating cash fund Z S (210 000)
- Cell tower to GF infrasturcture =~ . S (61,013) |
" Reimbursement to general fund T (158,410) -
,Debtsemce DI S s (410,856)

- B. Excess of Expendltures Over Appropnatlons k

" For the year ended June 30, 2018 General Fund expendltures exceeded approprlatlons in public
- works by $6,258 and capital outlay by $124 167 ‘This over expendlture was funded by’ greater than '
antlclpated revenues in that fund : ) :
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Cash and Cash Equivalents o

- Dc_:posn

Account

Gereral

Checking .~

- . GF Operating fund
. -GF New capital

.- General 3RM

" Loudon Street - © - -

* Clock Tower Donation
Gen Debt Retirement ~
~Gen'Rainy day - .
‘Gen 30 Day Cash -

Petty cash

‘ Gen HR Fund -

: ‘Watef and Sewer -

" Checking, capital

New Capital -

- Utility 3RM -
. Frye Ct.

' UFOperating cash .

‘Water AF Reserve . -
- New water & seweracct: . -

Utility Rainy Day .

* Utility 30 Day cash

Utility HR Fund

4yr Jumbo (Debt Retlre)

Total reportmg entlty

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

- Belowisa summary of the Town s accounts/depos1ts at June 30 201 8:
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" Bank

111,413

: . Carrymg © Be -
Bank _Amount - .. Balance
‘BB&T . $ 146,101 $ 204,220
. BB&T \ S 50003 50,003
... Access National Bank, w7 289,608 <. -289,608-
" Access National Bank - 44,019 44,019
- Access National Bank - 82,400, . 82,400
Access National Bank © 3,155 . 3,155
" Access National Bank 568,022 568,022
~ Access National Bank - 111,413
“Access National Bank_ ‘ 106,341 - 106,341
NA - S2000 0 -
'Access National Bank - . 50,546 - 50,546
- T © 0 $1,451.808 $ 1,509,727
BB&T . $ 358,048 $. 359,147
Access National Bank 197,806 197,806
. Access National Bank 264771 264,771
.~ Access National Bank - 9,401 - 9,401
. BB&T 67892 | 67,592
Access Natlonal Bankj‘ - 109,369 109,369
BB&T - 7701 71,701
" Access National Bank ' 75,819 75819
. Access National Bank 133,209 133209 -
- Access National Bank 44,418 44418 -
- Access National Bank ©__-919276 - - 919,276 -
o : o $2251.410 ' $ 2252,509

o All cash of the Town is mamtamed in accounts collaterahzed in accordance w1th the Vlrglma Secunty for

* Public Deposits Act, Section 2.2-4400 et. seq. of the Code of Virginia or covered by federal depository
insurance. Under the Act, banks and savings institutions holding public deposits in excess of the amount
insured by the FDIC must pledge collateral to the Commonwealth of Virginia Treasury Board, Financial
institutions may choose between two collateralization methodologies and depending upon that choice, will
pledge collateral that ranges in the amounts - from 50 percent to 130 percent of excess depos1ts
Accordmgly, all dep031ts are con51dered fully collaterahzed : , :
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Receivables

Recelvables as of June 30, 2018, for the govennnent s individual major funds mcludmg the. apphcable
. allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as follows: . , :
o Watcr and | :
S : _General ~ _Sewer  ~ __ Total
Receivables: c S e R
Property taxes - .~ - $ 629,759 $8 - - 8§ 629,759 -
*Other taxes: - e R o
- Utilities - 1,216 e 216
- Meals and occupancy - 19,933 . - - 119,933
Accounts =~ : 285 - _ 193732 194,017

-Grossreceivables  $651,193 $193,732  § 844925

Less: allowance for - L ,
_uncollectibles, '-‘, - -

Net total vreceiuables' § gg;, ; § 2;,1;; § 844,925
Due from Other Governmental Umts ) '

. .'Due from other govemmental umts consists of the followmg

Govemmgnt-type act1v1t1e ,‘ ”

County of Loudoun, V1rg1ma, sales tax collected for the Town 2 $ 37,480 ‘
Department of Taxation, commumcatwns tax collected N
for the Town I o .97
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Note 6. Capltal Assets - | :

| , Cap1tal asset act1v1ty for the year ended June 30, 201 8 was as follows

Beginning © ‘E‘niding_ﬂ

o . _Balance _ _Increases = Decreases _Balance
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES R ‘ o ) o
-Capltal assets not bemg depreclated R o B
Land 4 § 973820 $ - % - - $ 973820
Construcnonmprogress 70394 3745 e 74,139 -
- Total capital assets not bemg o T ‘ S ;
depremated o - $1044214 $ 3745 % - $.1.047.959
. Capxtal assets being deprecxated S o - Co o
* Buildings - . % 386978 $ 52985 §° . - $ 439,963
Land improvements - . ' 463,962 69,282 - 533244
- Machmeryandequlpment 92818 - - 14522 0 78,296
_ Infrastructure . S 2707764 - 13.960 - 2,693,804
_Total capital assetsbemg I R SR
depreciated - S0 U $3651,522 $ 122267 $ 28482 $ 3.745307
" Less accumulatcd deprecmnon for. ST IR R
‘Buildings. . - $ 49366 $ 10604 $ . - § 59970
Land improvements: -~ . 143,748 27426 - - 1T1174
Machinery and equipment 57816 0 6,323 14,522 49,617
. Infrastructare . . 106,798 _ 73487 _ 13960 _ 166325 -

Tofal éccum’ulated depfecistien ©$ 357728 $ 1117;84_O- $ - 28.4‘]82/,'$"‘ 447,086 -

Totalcapltalassetsbemg o A
deprecxated net ... - $3293794 . $ 4427 § - § 3298221
'}‘GOVERNMENTALACTIVITIES e o
CAPITALASSETS NET ~  $£4338008 § 8172 § - § 4346180
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES | ) |
Cap1ta1 assets not bemg deprecxated ' L e :
Land ‘ % 1542008 - :$ - - $ 154200
Constructlonmprogress 98.811 ~ - - .. o881 - - -
. Total capital assetsnot o e
bemg depreclated v 8 2530118 - . - 5 98811 $ . 154200
Cap1ta1 dssets being deprcclated _ v R o .
Utility system  $13856431$ 138876 $ 22,003 $ 13973304
Totalcapltalassetsbemg ' S o o ‘
‘ _ . depreciated - ' $ 13856431 8 138876 $ 22,003 $ 13.973.304
- Less accumulated depreciatlon for ‘ T / L
Utility system : . $ 5103489 § 402472 $ 20290 § 5485.671
~Total accumulated : o : o . .
depreciation . $ 5103489 8 402472 $ 20290 § 5485.671 -
Total capital assets being ' ‘ B : .
depreciated, net . °$ 8752942 8 (263596) 8 1,713 $ 8.487.633
'BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

"CAPITALASSETS,NET - §.9005,953 § (263,596) $ 100,524 § 8,641,833
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Note 6. Capltal Assets (Contmued)

'Depreclatlon expense was charged to funct10ns/programs of the pnmary govemment as follows

' GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES o : o
General government admnnstratlon v L - § 41209
Publxc works , ‘ . ' S © 76,631

Total depreclatron expense governmental actlvmes R %ﬂ .

 BUSINESS-TYPE, ACTIVITIES L

Waterand sewer \ R o s 8 1402472
Total depreelatxon expense busmess type actlvmes o L %ALZ

- l\lote 7. Unavailable Revenue ‘

The followmg is a summary of unava1lable revenue mcluded in deferred mﬂows of resources by V
fund/act1v1ty at June 30, 2018 , : ‘

. Fund Statements. . S '
- - " General

- Property taxes bllledmﬁscal year2019 - § 601271
~ Uncollected property.tax billing SRR L 27,670
Taxes collectedmadvance P D S 555
629,45
= 'Government?Wide Staitements
| _ Governmental

7 ‘ - o Actiﬂ':ties L
'Propertytaxesbllledmﬁscalyear2019 e o % 601,271

Taxes collectedmadvance T DU .. 555

, SN_o_te'S. " Long—Term Obllgatlons

A summary of long-term debt activity for the year ended June 30, 2018, 1s as follows Addmonal detaxled ‘, :
mformatron is avallable on the followmg pages. - ) A e

Beginning ~ . Ending']j Dus within

Balances '~ Additions  Reductions  Balances _One Year
General Fund | - ‘ ’ 7 ,
'General obligation bond ~ § 1,575, o0 s - $ (85,000 $ 1,490,000 $ 90,000
* Premium on bond issuance 18, 00 - (1e6A) 16636 _ L664

ML_M&@LML;QE@
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Long—Term Obhgatlons (Contmued)

Beginning - A B Endmg Due within
Balances = Additions  Reduictions Balances O’n'erYear'v

Business-type activities -

o ’“Water;c'md‘ SeWerFu‘nd\i a

Generalobhgatlonandrevenue o T T I R ST
bonds - ; $3202438 $ . - - $(411,748) $ 2,790,690 ' $ 366,595 -

"Premlumon bond issuance 253 945 e (40 429) 213,516 38 695v

ML_M@MM&A&

Details of ldngiterm‘ obligations‘:‘ ' Lo -
o © 7 Amount Due
Total . Within ’
‘Amount -~ _-One Year
'General Obllganon Bond » - . -
. $2 025,000 General obligatxon bonds 1ssued :
e December7 2010 payable in annual principal payments
- ranging from $65,000 to $145,000 and semi-annual interest -
payments ranging from 3 percent to 6.561- percent w1th S .
ﬁnal payment due’ Februaryl 2031, - - $1490,000 '$ - 90,000
Total general obhgatlon bond o R \ $°1,490,000 8 90,_000 "
"Prermumonbondwsuance S S , R '—AV".16'.636 o 1i.j664 o
Total governmental act1v1t1es obhgat1ons L L_l,&,g_ﬁ $ 91,664 B
Annual requlrements to amortize long—term obllgat1ons and related mterest are as follows
: Yearend_mg-," : o . S EE t
. June30, - - S K Prinoipel : Mzs_t_
2019 $ 90,000 § 58127
20200 LT : ©o 95,000 - 54437_'
2021 - o 100,000 51,254
2022 Sl R 100,000 - 48,282 -
2023 . - 105,000 . 45957
- - 2024-2028 ' Co . ~ 585,000 164 728
20292032 . 415000 363881

Total . $1490000 §_ 459,666
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Long-Term Obllgatlons (Contmued)

Busmess-ﬂpe act1v1t1e

Details of long-term obligations:

vGeneral Obhgatlon Bonds

o $3 499 572 Vlrgmla Resource Authorlty bonds issued December
© 21, 1999 payable in semi-annual installments of $91,980- bearmg
‘1o mterest Final payment due October 1, 2020 '

$2,005 OOOVSernes 2015A Refundrng Revenue bonds issued.

through Virginia Resource Authority on May 28, 2015, beanng

© ' interest at 3:125 percent to 5.125 percent payable in semi-annual - - :
e mstallments Principal payable annually through Octoberl 2027.

7 - $47 6 327 V1rg1ma Resource Authonty bond 1ssued October 23

2009 payable in semi-annual installments of $17,284, bearmg

' interest. at 2 65 percent. Final payment due March 1,2030.

Total general obhgatlon and revenue bonds

‘ Prermum on bond 1ssuance :

Total busmess-type act1v1t1es

h .Yearendmg
- _June30, -

2019
- 2020,
- 2021
2022
2023
2024-2028
©2029-2032

. Total

§ 459,809 § 183959

" Amount Due
‘Total Within

) 'A—_mount One Year, 7

2,005,000 160,000

325, 791[' 22636

K $2790690 $. 366595

213516 38,695 e

‘ ',VQ;LQQEQQQ i===2i&22L
' Annual requlrements to amortrze long-term obhgat1ons and related mterest are as follows

. Fﬁncipal - Interest

$ 366595 5 102,264

377,360 . . .. 94,193

291,176 - 85,712 o
210 009 75670 . . |
- 215,853 - 30,066 - ‘

1267970 151,988 ¢

61727 . 2,709

$2790.690 § 542,602
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Fund Balance and Net ASSet Desrgnatlons

Des1gnat10ns segregate portrons of the fund balance and net assets that are earmarked for. Specrﬁc
purposes. The Town Councrl and management estabhsh the various desrgnat1ons :

Unreserved fund balance and unrestrrcted net assets m the Fund Fmanc1al Statements are des1gnated as
follows : ‘ , )

' General Fund

- Loudoun Street nnprovements 8 82,400
Unappropriated fund balance e .. 1,908,831
5-,Prepaidvitems - , _ e _4.895
~ Fund Balance, Unreseryed« S | ﬁ,92§(,!2g
' Water & SewerFund . .
‘Unappropriated net assets Lo $ 1946815
Net Assets; Unrestricted s 1046815

Operatmg Lease Commltments
7 The Town recerves rental mcome from four operatmg leases L

The Town leases its water tank to commumcatrons compames under noncancelable operatmg leases for

59 months. The. monthly rents received from the leases range. from $3,275 to $3,405. Each lease is :
adjusted upward annually. The companies use the tank to mount their antennas. The following is.a . -

~_schedule by years of future mmrmum rentals under the initial terrns of the leases

-

Year Endmg June 30 .
2019 - s 81760

2020 . . 85030
2021 o 88432
2022 B 91,969

2023 70789
.‘7-2024_ S ‘23,903 -

$ 441,§8;

The total rental income from these leases that is mcluded in the Water and Sewer Fund’s statement of " '

, "/  revenues and expenses for the years ended June 30 2018 was’ $78 746.

Note 11,

- leave pay of §7, 737

" Town employees earn annual leave. at various Tates. Srck leave is pa1d upon separation of employment

Compensated Absences

‘In accordance ‘with GASB Statement 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences, the Town has accrued f
: 11ab111t1es arlsmg from compensated absences ‘ . -

with the Town up to an amount equal to 25 percent of the unused balance. Accumulated vacation and
annual leave is paid upon termination up to a maximum of 240 hours. The Town’s general fund has
outstanding accrued leave pay totalmg $34 638 and the Water and Sewer Fund have outstandmg accrued ’



Note. 12

R Page 41
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Risk Management

. The Townis exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft of damage to, and destruction of assets,
* - errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural dlsasters To reduce insurance costs and the need

for self-insurance, the Town has joined with other mumctpahtres in the Commoriwealth of Virginia in a
public entity risk pool that operates as a common risk management and insurance program for member
mumclpahtles The Town is.not self-lnsured . ‘

The Town has insurance coverage with the Virginia Mum01pal Group Self Insurance Assoclatlon Each -
Association member jointly and severally agrees to assume, pay and discharge any liability. The Town
~pays contributions and assessments based upon classifications and rates into a designated cash reserve -

fund out of which expenses of the Association and claims and awards are to be paid. In the event of a loss

. deficit and depletion of all available excess insurance, the Association may assess all members in the

proportion that the premium of each bears to the total premlums of all members in the year in which such -

© - deficit occurs. The Town’s settled clalms have not exceeded insurance coverage in any of the past three

,Note.113.'

fiscal years. - . Lo

Pensnon Plan

g Plan DeSCI’lDtlon

| , All full-tlme, salarled permanent employees of the P011t1cal Subd1v1sron are- automatically covered by
* + VRS Retirement Plan upon employment. This plan is administered by the Vlrglma Retirement System

(the System) along with plans for other employer groups in the Commonwealth of V1rg1ma Members

‘. earn one month of service credit for each month they are employed and for which they and their employer

- pay contnbutlons to VRS. ‘Members are eligible to purchase prror service, based on specific criteria as .

defined in the Code of Virginia, as amended. - Eligible prior service that may be purchased includes: pnor -

o publlc serv1ce actlve rmhtary serwce, certain. penods of leave,’ and prev10usly refunded service. -

The System admlmsters three different benefit structures for covered employees - Plan 1, Plan 2, and,- '
Hybrid. ‘Bach of these benefit structures has a. different eligibility criteria. -The specific information for

e reach plan and the e11g1b111ty for covered groups w1th1n each plan are set out in the table that follows

" PLAN1

VRS - VRS " HYBRID _

RETIREMENT PLAN

' PLAN?

."About VRS Plan 1

“|' VRS Plan I is a defined benefit plan. The

| retirement benefit is based on a member’s age,
creditable service and average final. -

’ compensatron at retlrement using a formula. -

About VRS Plan 2

‘| 'Plan 2 is a defined benefit plan. Tho re retirement

benefit is based on a member’s: age, creditable
service and average final compensatron at -

fetirement ustng a formula »

"| ‘About the Hybnd Retlrement Plan .
- The Hybrid Retirement Plan combmm the

features of a defined benefit plan and a

: ‘deﬁned contnbutton plan.

S The deﬁned beneﬁt is based ona member s

age, creditable service and average final

.| ;compensation at retirement using a formula,

+ The benefit from the defined Gontribution

| component of the plan depends on the .

member and employer contributions made to -

| the plan and the investment perfonnance of

those contrlbutlons ‘

. In addition’ to the monthly benefit payment °

payable from the defined beriefit plan at’

| retirement, a member may start receiving

. distributions from the balance in the defined

contribution account, reflecting the
contributions; investment gams or losses and
any required fees.
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Note 13 Penslon Plan (Contmued)

VRS © VRS " HYBRID
PLAN 1 PLAN 2 RETIREMENT PLAN,
k El]gnble Members - Eligible- Members Eligible Members

,Employees are in Plan 1 if their membershlp
date is before July 1, 2010, and they were
.vested as ofJanuary 1,2013, and they have
not taken a refund .

Hybrid Opt-In Eleetion : E
*'VRS non-hazardous duty covered Plan l )
members were allowed to make an irrevocable

- | decision to opt into the Hybrid Retirement -

Plan during a special election window held
January 1 through April 30,2014,

The Hybrid Retitement Plan’s effective date -

for eligible VRS Plan 1 membexs who opted in
‘was July 1,2014.

-

" | 1t eligible deferred members returned to work

during the election window, they were also
eligible to.opt into the Hybnd Retuement
Plan .

| Members who were eligible for an optional
retirement plan (ORPY and had prior service
under Plan | were not eligible to.elect the -
,Hylmd Retlrement Plan and remain as Plan 1

o orORP

date is on or after July 1, 2010, or their

,Hybrid Opt-ln Eleetion .

|, Eligible Plan 2 members were allowed to °
‘make an itrevocable decision to opt into the
Hybrid Retirement Plan during a special
election window held January 1 through Apnl
30,2014, :

The Hybrld Retirement Plan’s eﬂ‘ectrve date
-for eligible Plan 2 members who opted in was
) July 1 2014 -

' Ifehgrble deferred members returned to work
during the election window, they were also..-
|- eligible to opt-into the Hybrid Retlrement
“Plan, =

urider Plan 2 were not eligible to elect the
Hybrid Retrrement Plan and remain as Plan 2
or ORP. , -

Employees are in Plan 2 if their membershrp :

'| membership date is before July 1, 2010, and
they were not vested as of January 1,2013, -

Menbers who were cligible for a optional -
retirement plan (ORP) and have priof service

Employees are in the Hytmd Retlrement Plan |
if their membership date is on or after January |

1, 2014, This includes:' ~
« Political subdivision employees*

+ Members in Plan 1 or Plan 2 who elected :

to opt into the plan during the election

-, window-held January 1-April 30,2014; the
plani’s effective date for opt-in’ members
was July I, 2014

*Non-Ehgible Members o

_Some employees are not ehglble to pamclpate
\in the Hybrid Retirement Plan. They include:

",  Political subdivision employees who are
' covered by enhanced benefits for'
hazardous duty employees

B Those employees ehgrble for an optronal
' retirement plan (ORP) must elect the ORP -

plan or the Hybnd Retirement Plan, If these
members have prior service under Plan 1 or
Plan 2, they are not eligible to elect the
Hybrid Retitement Plan and must select Plan
Tor VRS Plan 2 (as applicable) or ORP; .

Retlrement Contnbutrons :
Employees contribute up to 5% of their
|- compensation eacti month to their member .

contribution account througha pre-tax salary

{ reduction, Member contributions are tax- - .

| ‘deferred until they are withdrawn as part of a
retirement benefit or as a refund. The. ™ -

- employer makes a separaté actuarially

 determined contribution to VRS forall -

- covered employees. VRS inyests both member

| and employer contributions to pmvrde fundmg

| for the future benefit payment

Retirement Contributions .
| Employees contribute up to 5% of therr
compensation each month to-their tnember

reductlon

. conttibution account through a pre-tax salary

Retu'ement Contributions
" |':A member’s retirement benefit is funded
. through mandatory and voluntary

contributions made by the member and the

"employer to both the defined benefit and the
defined contribution components of the plan,

-Mandatory contributions are based-on a

| percentage of the employee’s creditable = |
- compensation and are required from both the

‘member and the employer, Additionally,
members may chdose to make voluntary
contributions to the defined contribution

*" | component of the plan, and the employer i is
"-| required to match those voluntary ’

. contributions according to speclﬁed V
pementages
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Note 13 Pensnon Plan (Contlnued)

VRS -

member needs to qualify for a future:
- retirement benefit. Members become vested

when:they have at least five years (60 months) | -

of creditable service. Vesting means members
are eligible to qualify for retirement if they .

meet the age and service requirements for their .
| plan "Members also must be vested to receive |

4 full refund of their member contribution
‘account balance if they leave employment and
request a rel"und .

Members are always 100% vested in the
contributions that they make U

PLAN 1 PLAN 2 RETIREMENT PLAN
Creditnble Service : Creditable Service - ' Creditable Service
Creditable service includes active setvice. Same as VRS Plan 1, Defined Benefit Component; - -
Members earn creditable service for each ‘ Under the defined benefit component of the
. | month they are employed in a covered | plan, creditable service includes active
‘ posmon It also may include credit for prior | service. Members earn creditable service for
service the member has purchased or each month they are employed in a covered |
additional creditable service the member was ) position. It also may include credit for prior
granted. A member’s total creditable service is | : service the member has purchased or i
.| one of the factors used to determine their e - additional creditable service the member was
-1 eligibility for retirement and to caloulate their. - granted. A member’s total creditable service
retirement benefit. It also may count toward - is 'one of the factors used to determine their -
eligibility for the health insurance credit in eligibility for retirement and to calculate their.
Cretirement, if the employer offers the health retirement benefit, It also may count toward
i msurance credlt : eligibility for the health insurance credit in*
retirement, if the employer offers the health .
- msurauce credit,
Defined Contl‘ibutions Component:
“Under the defined contribution component,
creditable setvice is used to detérmine vesting
for the employer contnbutlon pomon of the
“plan, . . '
Vesting: - T B Vesting , ;Vestmg ) ’ :
Vesting is the minimum length of servicea | Same as VRS Plan 1. Defined Benefit Component.

Defined benefit vesting is the minimum
length of service a member needs to qualify

1 for a future retirement benefit, Members are
“vested under the defined benefit component

of the Hybnd Retirement Plan when they -
teach five years (60 moriths) of creditable . °

/| service. Plan 1 or Plan 2 members with at

least five years (60 months) of creditable

service who opted into the Hybrid Retirement -
Plan remain vested in the defined benefit =~
component. :

" | Defined Contributions Com'ponent: )

Defined contribution vesnng refers to the

. minimum length of service a member nieeds to

be eligible to withdraw the employer
contributions from the defined contribution

‘ component of the plzin

Members are always 100% vested i in the .

contributions that they make.

Upon retirement or feaving covered o
employment, a member is eligibleto
withdraw a percentage of employer -

.| conttibutions to the defined contribution

component of the plan, based on service.
« After two years, a member is 50% vested
and may wrthdraw 50% of employer '
contributions. -
+ After three years, a member is 75% .

B _vested and may wnthdraw 75% of employer

contributions,
+ After four or more years, a memberis
100%, vested and may withdraw 100% of
‘ employer ‘contributions. -

Distribution is not requxred by law untxl age
70‘/:
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VRS -

"HYBRID

VRS _
PLAN 1 _PLAN?2 _RETIREMENT PLAN
1 Calculnting the Benefit . | Calculating the Benefit Calculating the Benefit
The Basic Benefit is calculated based on a See definition under VRS Plan 1, Defined Benefit Component;

formula using the member’s average final - - .
compenisation, a tetirement multiplier and
- total service credit at retirement. It is one of
“the benefit payout options available to a
member at netlremmt

‘ An ea.rly retirement reductron factor is apphed 1i
| tothe Basic Benefit if the member retires with.

areduced retirement benefit or selects a
‘beneﬁt payout optlon other than the Basic.
Benefit. : .

' See deﬁniti'on under Plan 1.

Deﬁned Contribution Component‘ o
The benefit is based on contributions made by

 the member and any matching contributions -

made by the employer, plus net mvestment
eammgs on those contrlbutlons )

Average Fmal Compensation

A mémber’s average final compensation is the »

-average of the 36 consecutive months of -

highest compensation as a covered employee.

Average Final Compensation

A member’s average final compensation is the
average of their 60 consecutive months of -
highest compensation as a covered employee. -

Average Final Compensntron

Same as Plan 2. It is used in tlre retirement
formula for the defined beneﬁt component of

| the plan,

Service Retirement Multiplier .-

"The retirement multiplier is-a factor used in =~

the formula to determine-a final retiremenit
benefit, The retirement multiplier for non~
hazatdous duty mémbers is 1.7%. The
retirement multiplier for sheriffs and regional
jail superintendents is 1.85%. The tetirement
.multiplier of eligible political subdivision .

hazardous duty employees other thaii sheriffs

| and regional jail superintendents is 1.7% or
_ l 85% as elected by the employer .

' Servrce Retirement Mulnpher ]
| Same as Planl for service earned, pumhased

or granted prior to Januaty 1,2013. Fornon-
hazardous duty metmnbers the retiremient

" multiplier is 1.65% for creditable service

eamed, purchased or granted onorafter -
January 1, 2013. The retirement multxpher for
sheriffs and regional jail superintendents is
1.85%. The retitement multiplier of cligible

political subdivision hazardous duty .
" employees other than sheriffs and regional jail
. superintendents is 1.7% or 1.85% as elected

by the employer

v

Service Retirement Multiplier ] ’

| Defined Benefit Component;

The retirement multnpher for the deﬁned
benefit component is 1 0%

For members that opted irito the Hybnd
" Retirement Plan from Plan: 1 or Plan 2, the
applicable multipliers for those plans will be |

used to calculate the retirement benefit for

“service credited in those plans. Not -

" applicable to sheriffs, regional jail .

| superintendents-and political subdmslon
hazardous duty employees.

Deﬂned Contribution Commnent: 3
Not applicable,

* Normal Retlrement Age
VRS Age 65.

Polltical subdivrsrons hazardous duty
. employees. Age 60,

Normal Retirement Age .

VRS: Normal Social Secunty retirement age

Political subdivrsions hazardous duty
; 'employees' Sameas Plan 1,

"‘Ndr;mal Ret_irement Age:

Defined Benefit Component:

- VRS; SameasPlan2. -

Political subdivision hazardous duty
employees: Not applicable, -. -

Defined Contribution Compgnent'
Members are ehgrble to receive distributions

upon leaving employment, sub_] ect to
restnctlons :

“Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility
. VRS: Members who are not in hazardous
duty positions are eligible for an unreduced-
retirement benefit af age 65 with at least five
years (60 months) of creditable service or at-

7| age 50 with at least 30 years of credltable
service, S

Politleal subdivmons hazardous duty
. | employees: Hazardous duty members are -

|  eligible for an unreduced retirément benefit at
age 60 with at least five yeats.of creditable
service or age 50 with at least 25 years of |
creditable servrce

 Earliest Unreduced Retirement Eligibility

VRS: Memibers who,are not-in hazardous

- duty positions are eligible for an unreduced
- retirement benefit when they reach normal -

Social Security retirement age and have at

least five years (60 months) of creditable

service or when their age and service equal 90,

“l’o‘litica‘l subdivision’s hazardous duty , ‘
employees: Hazardous duty members are -

eligible for an unreduced retirement benefit at -

age 60 with at léast five years of creditable
service or age: 50 with at least 25 years of -
creditable service,

Earliest Unredueed Retirement Eligibility

‘Defined Benefit Component: -
- VRS: Members are eligible for an’ unreduced

retiremerit benefit when they reach normal -
Social Security retirement age and have at
least five years (60 months) of creditable’
service or when their age and service cqual ’
90, ‘

Political subdivision hazardous duty
employees: Not applicable:

Defined Contrlbutlon Component. :
Members are eligible to receive distributions

upon leaving employment, subject to
restrictions. .
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Note 13 Pension Plan (Contmued)

VRS
PLANl

VRS

" HYBRID
RETIREMENT PLAN

‘Earliest Reduced Retirement Ellgibility

, VRS: Members may retire with a reduced
benefit as early as age 55 with at least five -
years (60 months) of creditable service or age
'50 with at least 10 years of cmditable service,

Political subdmsions hazardous duty
employees: - 50 with at lwst five years of.
k credltable servlce

_PLAN?2 -

_ Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility X
VRS: Members may retire with a reduced :

" | benefit as early as age 60'with at least five

years 60 months) of credntable service,

Politlcal subdlvisions hazardous duty

. ’-employees' Same’ asPlanl

Earliest Reduced Retirement Eligibility

Defined Benefit Component:
VRS: Members may retire with a reduced
benefit as early as age 60 with at least five,

‘years (60 months) of credltable service, v ‘

Political subdivision hazardous duty
employeés: Not applicable.

Deﬁned Contribution Comp_onent.

-Members are eligible to receive dlsmbutlons

upon leaving employment, sub_]ect to
rmtnctlons

Al

) Cost-of Living Adjustment (COLA) in
Retirement
The Cost-of-Livirig Ad_]ustment (COLA)

" matches the first 3% increase in the Consumer
Price Index: for all Urban Consumers (CPI-U)

" | and half of any additional increase (up to 4%)

uptoa maxunum COLA of 5%

liggblllg o
.For members who retire with an unreduced
benefit of with a reduced benefit with at least
20 years of creditable sérvice, the COLA will
go into effect on July 1 after one full calendar
: year from the- retn'ement date

- For membexs who retire w1th a reduced benefit ‘

and who have less fhan 20 years of creditable
service, the COLA will go into effect on July 1
| after one calendar.year following the

o urueduee_d retirement eligibility date, .

Exceptious to COLA Effective Dates:
: The COLA is effective July. 1 following one .

full calendar year (January 1 to Decembcr 31y

under any of the following circumstances:

« The ‘member is within five years of -
qualifying for an unreduced retirement
benefit as of Janvary 1, 2013;

,* The member fetires on dnsabxhty

. The member retires directly from shott-term
or long-term disability under the Virginia
" Sickness and Disability Program (VSDP).

e The member is involuntarily separated from.

~* employment for causes other than job

performance or misconduct and is eligible

" ‘to-retire under the Workforce Transition
Act or the Transntlonal Benéfits Program,
* The smember dles in service and the

member’s survivor or beneficiary is eligible .

for a monthly death-in-service benefit, The
COLA will go into effect on July |-
following one full calendar year (January 1
to December 31) from the date the monthly
1 beneﬂt begms

. Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) in

{ Retirement

‘The Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA)
matches the first 2% increase in the CPI-U_
and half of any additional increase (up to: 2%),
for a maxxmum COLA of 3%.

| Biigibitity: .

Same as Plan 1.

xceptions to QOLA Effective Dates:

SameasPlan 1. ..

Cost-of-leing Adjustment (COLA) in

‘Retirement

-Defined Benefit Component'
Same as Plan 2 e

Deﬁned Co’ntnbution Cump‘ onent:
_Not applicab‘le. -

hglbllltx. V\I [

.SameasPlanlandVRSPlanZ

'Exceptions to COLA Effective Dates:

Same as Plan 1-and Plan 2.
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Note 13. Pensnon Plan (Contmued)

VRS .

VRS

HYBRID

_PLAN1 _PLAN? - RETIREMENT PLAN
Disability Covernge - Disability Coverage ‘ _Disabrlity Coverage

Members who are eligible to be consrdered for
 disability retirement and retire on disability,
the retirement multiplier is 1.7% on all
service, regardless of when 1t was wrned,
purehased or granted

VSDP. members are subject to a one-year
waiting penod before becoming eligible for
_ non-work related drsabrlrty benefits, i

L

Members who are eligible to be consrdered for
disability retirement and retire on disability,
the retirement multiplier is 1,65% on all
setvice, régardless of when it was  earmned, .
purchased or granted

1 vsSDpp members are Sl-lbj ect toa one-year
[ waiting period before becoming elrgrble for
non-work related drsabilrty benefits

Employees of political subdrvlsron (includlng
Plan 1 and Plan 2 opt-ins) participate.in the
Virginia Local Disability Program (VLDP)
unless their local governing body providesan

‘ employer—pard comparable program for its
" members,

Hybnd members (mcludmg Plan 1 and Plan2
opt-ms) covered under VLDP are subject toa
one-year waiting period before ‘becoming
eligible for non-work related: drsabrlrty
benefits, .

Purehase of Prior Service -
Members may be eligible to purchase service -

| from prevrous public employment, active duty
* | ‘military service, an eligible period of leave or

" VRS refunded service as creditable service in
their plan, Prior creditable service counts
‘toward vesting, e]rgrbrlrty for retirement and
the health insurance credit. Only active

- members are. ehgrble fo purchase prior service.

When buying service, members must purchase

their most recent penod of service first,
Members also'may be elrgrble to purehase
periods of leave wrthout pay. S

Purehase of Prior Servree
"Same as Plan 1,

Purchase of Prior Service

| Defined Benefit Component;
. Same as Plan 1, with the following exceptron ‘

* Hybrid Retiremént Plan members

o are mellgrble for ported service. ;-

y Deﬁned Contrrbutron Component‘ l
‘Not applrcable

' ,‘ ’Emplovees Covered bv Beneﬁt Terms

- of the pensron plan

.-

B As of the June 30 2016 actuarlal valuatlon, the followmg employees were covered by the beneﬁt terms o

(
o

h Number

Inactrve members or thelr beneﬁ01ar1es currently recervmg beneﬁts | Co-

Inactrve members

s Vested mactlve members

Non-v'ested inactive members :

Retxrees and beneﬁcranes

Inactlve members actrve elsewhere in VRS :
Total mact1ve members : ‘

Actlve members -

' Tota_l covered,_ employees "
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Note 13 Pensnon Plan (Contmued)

Contnbutrons

t-The contrlbutlon requrrement for active employees is governed by §51.1-145 of the Code of Vtrgmza, as.
" .- amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding options provided to political subdivisions by the
'Virginia General Assembly. Employees are required to contribute 5.00 percent of their compensation
toward their retirement: Prior to July 1, 2012, all or part of the 5.00 percent member contribution may
~ have been assumed by the employer. ‘Beginning July 1, 2012 new employees were required to pay the 5
_ percent member contribution. - In addition, for: existing employees, employers were required to begin
. making the employee pay the 5.00 percent member contribution. This could be phased in over a perrod of
up to 5 years and the employer is required to provide a salary mcrease equal to the amount of the increase

. inthe employee-pard member- contnbutron o :

 The pohtrcal subdivision’s contractually requ1red contrrbutron rate for the year ended June 30 2018 was
5.18 percent of covered employee compensation. This rate was based onan actuanally determmed rate
from an actuanal valuat1on as of June 30, 2015. ‘

ThJs rate when combmed w1th employee contnbutrons was expected to ﬁnance the costs of beneﬁts-
- earned by the employee during the year; with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued -
~ liability. Contributions to the. ‘pension plan from the polltrcal subdrvrsron were $27 531 and $25 904 for
. .the years. ended June 30, 2018 and June 30 2017 respect1ver ~ B

. Net Pensmn (Asset) Llabrhtv -

The pohtrcal SUblelSlOIlS net pension (asset) 11ab111ty was measured as of June 30, 2017 The total -
pension liability used to calculate the net pension (asset) liability was determined by an actuarial valuation

* “performed as of June 30, 2016, using updated actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods mcluded in the - - i

measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of. June 30, 201 7

7 VActuanal As _L ptrons General Emplovees

The fotal penslon 11ab111ty for General Employees in the Political Subdrvrslon s Retirement Plan was
based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and
the followmg assumptions, applied to all periods mcluded in the measurement and rolled forward to the
measurement date of June 30, 2017 :

Inﬂatron “ - 2’5‘ percent
Salary mcreases, mcludmg mﬂatron o ,3 5 percent - 5 35 percent
Investment rate of return . B v‘ 7.0 percent net of pension: plan mvestment

expense, mcluding mﬂatlon*

o Adrmmstratrve expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experrence study were

& ‘found to be approximately 0.06 percent of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide

an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0 percent. -
However, since the. differénce was minimal, and a more conservative 7.0" percent investment return -
assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments the long- -
term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 7 0 percent to srmphfy preparatlon of

_ pension habrhtres , :
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Mortahty rates '

Lar_gest' 10 - Non-HaZardous Duty: 20% of d_eaths are assumed 6 be service related

Pre—Retrrement

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80 Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 81 and older prOJected with
scale BB to 2020 males 95% of rates; females 105% of rates. . :

| Post-Retlrement ' ' ' R
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49 Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 50 and older prOJected w1th -

 scale BB to. 2020 males set forward 3 years females 1.0% i mcrease compounded from ages 70 to - ‘
90 a , o :

Post-Drsablement

-~ RP-2014. Dlsablhty Mortallty Rates prOJected w1th scale BB to 2020 males set forward 2 years, :
- 110% of rates, females 125% of rates . .

All Others (N on 10 Largest) Non-Hazardous Duty 15% of deaths are. assumed to-be service related

‘Pre-Retrrement

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annurtant Rates at ages 81 and older pro_]ected w1th '
scale BB to 2020 males 95% of rates females 105% of rates

Post-Retlrement : C -
-RP-2014 Employee Rates to’ age 49 Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 50 and older pro;ected with

scale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years, females’ 1 0% increase compounded from ages 70 to
90 ‘ » : o

' Post-Dlsablement

RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates prOJectafmth‘soaleBBWZOZOfrrial‘testhoﬁrardiyem‘s—
110% of rates; females 125% of rates. -

The actuarlal assumptlons used in the June 30 2016 valuatlon were based on the results of an actuarlal
-experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30 2016, . Changes to the actuanal
‘ assumptlons asa result of the expenence study are as follows ;

Largest 10 - Non-Hazardous Duty

'Mortahty Rates Pre-retlrement post-retlrement Update to-a more. current mortahty table - ARP~2014

" healthy, and disabled =~ - - . . ‘projected to 2020

| Retirement Ratess =~~~ S Lowered rates at older -ages and changed ﬁnal,:
1 e : | .retirement from 70 to 75 - '
‘Withdrawal Rates ' R Adjusted rates to better fit experience at cach year .

o S e | . age and service through 9 years of service _

| Disability Rates . R Lowered rates ‘
| Salary Scale -~ s T [ Nochange = . N

Line of Duty Disability Increase rate from 14% to 20% .
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All Others (Non 10 Largest) - Non-Hazardous Duty:

Mortality Rates . Pre-retirement, post-retirement | Update to a more current mortality table — RP-2014
healthy, and disabled . | = projected t0 2020 - .. ]
Retirement Rates o -+~ | Lowered rates at older ages and changed final |
1 - AT .| retirementfrom70to75
‘Withdrawal Rates - ©. . | Adjusted rates to better fit experience at each year
e | ageandservice through 9 years of service ’
| DisabilityRates =~~~ | Lowered rates ' o
| Salary Scale e '| Nochange © ~ S :
- { Line of Duty Disability =~ =~ =~ | Increase rate from 14% to 15%

' Actuarial Assumptions - Public Safety Employeds
The total pqﬁsion’liébility\for Public Safety employees in the Political Subdivision Retirement Plan was
based on an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, using the Entry Age Normal actuarial cost method and
the following assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement and rolled forward to the
~measurement date of June 30, 2017.. T R RN R

' (“I’nﬂation SR RPN -‘2;5p‘ercént, .
. Salary increases; inéluding' in’ﬂatiron" a -3.5.percen‘t¥741‘.i75. peréent o
o Investment rate of return o 70 -percent, net of pension ‘plan investment

_expense, including inflation* -

| -f,Admiiﬁétfét.ive expenses as :ipercén’t of the market value of assets for the last experience study were
- found to be approximately 0.06 percent of the market assets for all of the VRS plans. This would provide

- ‘an assumed investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0 percent.
However, since ‘the difference was ‘minimal, and a. more conservative 7.0 percent investment return

+ assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long-

term expected rate of return on investments was assumed to be 7.0 percent to simplify preparation of -
pension liabilities.- S : IR, o :

Mortqlify ,réites: '
o La’r,gestflOV—A Hézafdous Duty: 70% of deaths are assumed té be Service related: .

- Pfe;Retiremcnt:' , DR R e o
RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 81 and older projected with -
scale BB to 2020; males 90% of rates; females set forward 1 year, . .~ = L

VI"‘bSt-_Retiivreﬁient: . : : - R AR ) o
_RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 49, Healthy Annuitant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with
~scale'BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year, 1.0% increase compounded from ages 70 to'90;"

females set forward 3 years, -

PoStvDisablerrient: S o . : o . . o
RP-2014 Disability Mortality Rates projected with scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years;.
unisex using 100% male. - . . . L S
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R All Others (N on 10 Largest) Non—Hazardous Duty 45% of deaths are assumed to be serv1ce related

Pre-Retrrement

RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80 Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 81 and older proj ected wrth
scale BB to 2020 males 90% of rates, females set. forward l year.. :

' Post-Retrrement

RP-2014 Ernployee Rates to age 49 Healthy Annurtant Rates at ages 50 and older prOJected with

scale BB to 2020; males’set forward 1 year; 1. 0% mcrease compounded from ages 70 to 90;
females set forward 3 years , - . .

o 7 Post-Dlsablement

RP-2014 Drsablhty Mortalrty Rates prOJ ected wrth scale BB to. 2020 males set forward 2 years ,

umsex usmg 100% male.’
The actuarlal assumptrons used in the June 30, 2016 valuatlon were based on- the results of an actuanal
_experience. study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016 Changes to the actuanal
assumptrons asa result of the experrence study are as follows ‘ , ,

Largest 10 Hazardous Duty

' Mortahty Rates Pre‘retrrement post-retrrement _Update to a more- current mortahty table = RP-2014
healthy, and disabled - | projectedt02020 © -~ -
 Retirement Rates. - CL " | Lowered rates at older ages_ S
Withdrawal Rates . 1 Adjusted rates to better fit experrence '
- | DisabilityRates -~ . . . |Icreased rates . = o
.~ | SalaryScale . -~ - " 7 " TNg change
: Lme of Duty Drsabrhty S ‘ L L Increase rate from 60% to 70%

: All Others (Non 10 Largest) Hazardous Duty

] *Mortallty Rates Pre-retlrement post-retrrement "Update to ‘a-more current mortalrty table - -20'14
healthy, and disabled -~ - N projected to 2020 , ‘
Retirement Rates =~ - oo | Increased age 50 rates, and 10wered rates at older”
BT R o | ages '
Withdrawal Rates -~ - = .| Adjusted rates to better ﬁt experience at each year
ool ageand service thiough 9 years of service -
| Disability Rates ~ - o " | Adjusted rates to better fit expenence
SalaryScale .~ -~ " T'Nochange B :
Line of Duty Disability -~~~ =~ | Increase rate from 60% 1o 45%
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Long-Term Exnected Rate of Return

_The 10ng-term expected rate of retum on pension System mvestments was determmed using a log—normal
distribution analysrs in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected
~returns, net of pension System investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

‘These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected N

- future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The
‘target asset allocation and best estimate of arlthmetlc real rates of return for each ‘major asset class are.
i summanzedmthe following table: : o : :

A ‘Weighted‘
Arithmetic . Average
, ; ~ Long-Term - Long-Term™
(T Target =~ “Expected- - - Expected
_AssetClass (Strategy) -~~~ - Allocation - Rate of Retum - Rate of Return -
PublicBquity = - 40.00% - 454% - - 1.82%
‘Fixed Income o - 15.00% - 0.69% - 0.10%-

. Credit Strategies - - - 15.00% . 3.96% - 0.59%
Real Assets E o 15.00% ¢ 576% . ©0.86%
Private Equity o 1500% - 953% . _143%.
Towl - 10000% o AB0%

S ‘Inflation . . 2.50%
: *Expected anthmetrc nommal return . o - fZ,3Q%

¥ The above allocation prov1des a one-year return of 7.30 percent However, one-year returns do not take
into account the volatility present. in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected return for

‘the system, stochastic projections' are employed to model future returns under various economic -
conditions. ‘The results provide a range of returns over various time. petiods that ultrmately prov1de a
medlan return of 6. 83 percent mcludmg expected mﬂatlon of 2 50 percent ‘ ,

! Dlscount Rate ‘

 The dlscount rate used to measure the total pens1on 11ab111ty was 7.00 percent The prO_]CCtlon of cash

- flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that System member contributions will be made per the - -

~ VRS Statutes and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at

rates equal to the difference between actuanally determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board

of Trustees and the member rate. Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by
“the employer for the Political Subdivision Retirement Plan will be subject to the portion of the VRS

" Board-certified rates that are funded by the Virginia General Assembly. From July 1, 2019 on,

participating employers are assumed to contribute 100 percent of the actuarially determined contnbutlon

rates.. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available

" to make all projected future benefit payments of current active and inactive employees. Therefore the 7

‘Long-term expected rate of return was apphed to all penods of prOJected beneﬁt payments to determine
‘the total pens1on llablhty ’
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Note 13. ' Pension Plan (Contmued)

—:‘ Changes i m Net Pens1on (Asw) Llablhtv '

_Increase (Decrease).

",Net"

"Total . 'Plan -~ Pension
--Pension . -~ Fiduciary Liability
~ Liability =~ Net Position (Asset) =
g (a) _ ®) - __(a-=(b)
. Balances at June 30, 2016 S T 246 639 $ 249841 § = (3.202)
* Changes for the year: T . e
Service cost - S R 8 51,718 § © . - $ 51,718
.- Interest . L 17,265 o o 17,265
" Changes of assumptions . ce (7 545) ' - (7,545)
- Differences between expected and actua1: ' L ‘ o .
. experience . BRI o 3,739 o - 3,739
- - Contributions - employer L Lo e 27,704 (27,704) - -
~ Contributions - employee AP i S 25290 (25,290)
Net investment income ..~ R . 34,012 (34,012)
Benefit payments, including refunds of S R
- employee contributions IR ® . (6) oo
- Administrative expenses . S e - (140) ‘ 140 -
Other changes == B (3333
. Netchanges - . 8 65, 171 $ﬁ = 86 827 $ (21 656)7 L
L Balances at June 30 2017 v EEIE § ;gg,gggg § ;;g,ggg s ggg,gggl B

:Sensmwtv of the Net Pens1on (Asset) L1ab111tv to Changes in the D1scount Rate

' The followmg presents the net pensron habxllty of the polltlcal subdlvismn usmg the d1scount rate of 7 00

' percent as well as what the political subdivision’s net pension liability would be if it were calculated

using'a discount rate that is one percentage pomt lower (6.00 percent) or one percentage pomt hlgher (8. 00
percent) than the current rate: S - .

Ra.te? -
(6.00%) _(1.00%)  _(8.00%)

,Pohtlcal subd1v1s1on s . , . : e
- Net Pension (Asset) L1ab111ty $ 31,386 $ (24,858) $ -(70,241)
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~ Note 13. A Pension Plan (Continued)

‘Pension Expense and Deferred Oﬁtﬂoﬁs of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to -

- Pensions : S , S . _

For thc‘yeai' ended June 30, 2018,‘ the~politica1 subdiViSion recognized pension expei;se of $43,555‘. At -
~ June 30, 2018, the political subdivision reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred. inflows of - -
resources relgtcd to pensions from the following sources: =~ ST

Deferred Outflows Deferre’d’Inﬂows
of Resources - __of Resources

B Differences betwéén'exﬁe.c\t‘ed and actual =

. 'experienc;e» ' $ ‘,,',43,421 o $- ; _ '8,839 : " 

T Change in assumptions o o L e | ,"6,377 :
Net differeri(:c bé’t}w,‘ee‘n projected and actual earnings : ; o
. on pension plan investments R o - 5841 - -
: Employer contributions“sdbsequent to the measurement L I e
date o R/ ) R
S Tewl s 9095 S8 21057

. The amount of $27,531 repoftcd as deferred outflows of resourdc’sfrelatéd to pen'sidhs”res’iilrting from the .
subdivision’s contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the
Net Pension (Asset) Liability in the year ended June 30, 2019. Other amounts reported as- deferred.

- outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension -
- expense as follows: e ERRET SR SRR S

© YearendedJune30

.2019 L 81,922
2020 L 3643
©2021 o 2.007
2022 85y
2023 4299
- Thereafter -~ = . = 8,734

: Périsioﬁ Plan Dat’a' 7 g

. Information about the VRS Political Subdivision Retirement Plan is also available in the separately issued

-~ VRS 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2017 VRS CAFR may be

- downloaded from the VRS website at hitp://www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2017-annual-report.pdf, or
by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O Box 2500, Richmond, VA, 23218-2500.. - :

‘Payables iQ the PensionPlan

At'Juné‘30,“ 2018, the Town reported a payable of $4?,967 for the outstanding amount of coﬁtributi‘bris,tor
the pension plan required for the year ended June 30, 2018. : , T ’
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Plan Descrrptlon

: ‘All full-tlme salaried permanent employees of the state agencles teachers and employees of participating -

political subd1v1s10ns are automatically. covered- by the VRS Group Life Insurance Program upon

employment.. This plan is administered by the Virginia Retirement System (the System), along with .

= ‘pensmns and other OBEB plans for pubhc employer groups in the Commonwealth of Virginia. .

In addltron to the Bas1c Group ere Insurance beneﬁt members are also ehgible to elect addmonal
coverage for themselves as well as a spouse or dependent children through the Optional Group Life
Insurance Program. For members who elect the optional group life insurance coverage, the insurer bills
employers drrectly for the premiums. Employers deduct these premiums from members’ paychecks and

_ pay the premiums to the insurer, Since this is a separate. and fully msured program, it is not mcluded as -

. part of the Group LlfC Insurance Program OPEB.

The. specrﬁc mformatron for’ Group L1fe Insurance Program OPEB mcludmg ellgxblhty, coverage and

benefits is set out in the table below

GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PROGRAM PLAN PROVISIONS

: Elrglble Employees ' L ' ‘
The Group Life Insurance Program was establrshed July 1, 1960, for state employees teachers and
~ employees of political subdivisions that elect the program, mcludmg the followmg employers that do
not participate in VRS for retlrement , -
K Crty of Richmond
e Cityof Por_tsmouth ‘
& City of Roanoke. A
. eCityofNotfolk = . . -
.. Roanoke City Schools Board
- Basic group hfe insurance coverage is automatrc upon employment Coverage end for employees who

. leave their position before retirement e11g1b111ty or who take a reﬁmd of their member contrrbutrons ‘
: and accrued mterest , : : :

‘| Benefit Amounts e ‘ e : : :
The benefits payable under the Group Life Insurance Program have several components
e Natural Death Benefit — The natural death benefif is ‘equal to the employee s covered
o compensatlon rounded to the next highest thousand and then doubled. . ‘
e Accidental Death Benefit — The accidental death benefit is double the natural death beneﬁt ‘
. Other Benefit Provisions — In addition to the basic natural and accidental death benefits, the
program provides add1t10nal benefits prov1ded under specrﬁc cucunrstances These mclude
o Accidental dismemberment benefit : :
o Safety belt benefit :
. ‘o Repatriation benefit
o Felonious assault beneﬁt _
o  Accelerated death bene_ﬁt option
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vNote 14. Groﬁp Life Insurance (Cbntinued) '

Reduction in benefit Amounts - , - : S :

* The benefit amounts provided to members covered under the Group Life Insurance Program are subject 1
‘to a reduction factor. The benefit amount reduces by 25% on January 1 following one calendar year of |

separation. The benefit amount reduces by an additional 25% on each subsequent J anuary 1 until it

| reaches 25% of its original value.

Minimum Benefit Amount and Cost-of-Living Adjustment (COLA) L S
For covered members with at least 30 years of creditable service, there is a minimuri benefit payable |
Aunder the Group Life Insurance Program. The minimum benefit was set at $8,000 by statute, This = |
| amount is increased annually basedon the VRS Plan 2 cost-of-living adjustment and is currently *

| $8,111. o ST ' ' '

" Contributions

- The' contribution requirements for the Group Life Insurance Program are governed by §51.1-506 and

- §51:1-508 of the Code of Virginia, as amended, but may be impacted as a result of funding provided to
state agencies and school divisions by the Virginia General Assembly. The total rate for the Group Life:
Insurance Program was 1.31: percent of ‘covered employee compensation. This was allocated into an

- employee and an employer component using a 60/40 split. The employee component was 0.79 percent

(1.31 percent X 60 percent) and the employer component was 0.52 percent (1.31 percent X 40 percent). . .

“Employers may elect to pay all or part of the employee contribution, however the employer must pay all of
- the employer contribution. Each employer’s contractually required employer contribution rate for the year
- ended June 30, 2018 was 0.52 percent of covered employee compensation. This rate was based on an

- actuarially determined rate from an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2015. The actuarially determined - o

. rate, when combined with employee contributions, was expected 'to finance the costs of benefits payable
during the year, with an additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability.. Contribution to the
- Group Life Insurance Program from the entity was $4,610 for the year ended June 30,2018. . -

GLI OPEB Lisbilities, GLI OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to the Group Life Insurance Program OPEB C - :

‘At June 30, 2018, the entity reported a liability of $43,000 for its proportionate share of the Net GLI -
- OPEB Liability. The Net GLI OPEB Liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total GLI OPEB
 liability used to calculate the Net GLI OPEB Liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that
date. The covered employer’s proportion of the Net GLI OPEB Liability was based on the covered -
~employer’s actuarially determined employer contributions to the Group Life Insurance Program for the -
year ended June 30, 2017 relative to the total of the actuarially determined employer contributions for all
paiticipating employers. At June 30, 2017, the participating employet’s proportion was .00290 percent as -
compared to .00276 percent at June 30, 2016, " B R

‘ ’. For the year ended ,Juné 30; 2018, the'panicipating employer recognized GLI OPEB expense of $2,7000.
- Since there was a change in proportionate share between measurement dates, a portion of the GLI OPEB

expense was related to deferred-amounts from changes in proportion. -
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" At June 30 2018 the employer reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources
related to the GLI OPEB ﬁom the followmg sources: - ,

Deferred Outflows ) Deferred Inflows

‘ C ' - of Resources of Resources‘
leferences between expected and : ‘ R R
~actual experience’ : B - 82,000

. Net difference between prOJected and actual e S
_earnings on GLI OPEB program mvestments o= 11,000
7 Changemassumptrons S S AP | o : 2,000
* Changes mpropomon R . j o - ’-“
Employer contributions subsequent to _ o . R
»themeasurementdate Lo Lo o 1,844 R -

f.f\Total | Qﬁ L__i_.@ ,

81, 844 reported as deferred outﬂows of resources related to the GLI OPEB resultmg from the employer 5

contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reductron of the Net GLI OPEB
Liability in the Fiscal, Year ending June 30, 2019. - Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of

resources and deferred inflows of resources related to the GLI OPEB w1ll be recogmzed in the GLI OPEB B o

. ~ expense in future reportmg penods as follows

" Year ended June 30: , . :
‘ . 2019 % 1,000
. 20200 o . 1,000
02021 7 1,000
2022 - 1,000
12023 . 1,000

m,Ther’eafter

‘ Ac al Assumptrons

o o 'The total GLI OPEB liability was based on an actuanal valuatlon as of June 30 2016, usmg the Entry Age
‘Normal actuarial cost method and the, following assumptlons apphed to all penods mcluded in. the*

» measurement and rolled forward to the measurement date of June 30, 2017

Inﬂatlon o E ' 1.‘ L 25percent
: Salary mcreases, mcludmg mﬂat1on—~ N - o v’ :
Locality — General employees: - - 3.5 percent — 5.35 percent .
- Locallty Hazardous Duty employees .35 ~percent—4 75 percent }
o Vi‘Inves‘tment rate of return 7.0 Percent net of mvestment expenses, mcludmg mﬂatlon* '

¥ Adrmmstratlve expenses as a percent of the market value of assets for the last experlence study were,
found to be approximately 0.06 percent of the market assets for all of the VRS plans, This would provide
~ an assumed" investment return rate for GASB purposes of slightly more than the assumed 7.0 percent.

" However, since the dlfference was minimal, and a more conservative 7.0 percent investment return

‘assumption provided a projected plan net position that exceeded the projected benefit payments, the long- -
term expected rate of return on 1nvestments was assumed to be 7.0 percent to snnphfy preparatlon of the

OPEB hab111t1es
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Mortallgg rates — Non-Largest Ten' Locality Employers/- General Employees

. -Pre-Retirement:

‘RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annu1tant Rates to 81 and older prOJected wrth Scale
BB to 2020 males 95% of- rates, females 105% of rates,

. Post-Retrrement

RP-2014 Employee Rates.to age 49, Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 50 and older projected w1th'
Soale BB to 2020; males set forward 3 years females 1.0%: increase compounded from ages 70 to 90.

‘ 'Post-Dlsablement

- RP-2014 Disability Life Mortahty Table prOJected w1th scale BB to 2020; males set forward 2 years
110% of rates, females 125% of rates

: The actuarial assumptlons used in the June 30, 2016 valuatlon were based on the results of an actuarlal
- expetience study for the period from July 1, 2012.through June 30, 2016 Changes to the actuarral
- rassumptrons asa result of the experlence study are as follows

. ‘Mortahty Rates : (Pre-retnement post- Updated to a more current mortahty table ~ RP-2014 |-

|__ retirement healthy, and dlsabled) projected to 2020 B E
Retrrement Rates =~ | Lowered retirement rates at older ages and extended o
‘ Lo | final retirement age from 70 to 75. ’
‘Wlthﬁdrawal Rates . | Adjusted termination rates to better ﬁt expenence at
. o . i eachageand service year -
DisabilityRates' = .- =~ - _Lowered disability rates
Salary Scale < |Nochange _ e
Line of Duty Disability ~ L Increased rate from 14 to 15% S

Pre~Ret1rement

: RP-2014 Employee Rates to age 80, Healthy Annultant Rates to 81 and older projected w1th Scale
o BB to 2020; males 90% of rates, females set forward 1. ‘year. . Co '

4 Post-Retlrement N ) ’ ‘ ' ‘ ‘

’ RP-2014 Employee Rates to -age 49 Healthy Annultant Rates at ages 50 and older projected with
Scale BB to 2020; males set forward 1 year with 1.0% i increase oompounded from ages 70 to 90;
females set forward 3  years. : :

5 Post-Dlsablement

‘RP-2014 D1sab1hty Life Mortahty Table pI‘O_] ected w1th scale BB to 2020 ‘males set forward 2 years,
-unisex usmg 100% male , : o :

‘The actuarlal assumptlons used in the June 30, 2016 valuatlon were based on the results of an actuanal
experience study for the period from July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2016 Changes to the actuarial
assumptrons asa result of the expenence study are as follows
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_Mortahty_ _Rates , (Pre-retrrement, post- 'Updated fo a more current mortallty table - RP 2014
| _ retirement healthy, and disabled) ~ |- projected to 2020 3 -
Retirement Rates '_ Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at older ages
| Withdrawal Rates -~~~ . | Adjusted termination rates to better fit expenence at each

oy e L S ageandsemceyear - ‘
Disability Rates = - _ | Adjusted rates to better- match experlence
.| Salary Scale .-~~~ =~ - No change - :
._Lme of Duty D1sab111ty B - ‘Decreased rate from 60% to 45%
Net GLI OPEB Lrabrlltv

" The net OPEB llabrhty (NOL) for the Group L1fe Insurance Program represents the program s total
" OPEB liability determined in accordance with GASB Statement No. 74, less the associated: fiduc1ary net’

' position. As of June 30, 2017, NOL amounts for the Group L1fe Insurance Program is as’ follows
- (amounts expressed in thousands) \ _

Group Life Insurance |

, , 7 . o , OPEB Proggam ‘
 Total GLIOPEB Liability ,' o s20ma26
- Plan F1ducraryNet Position - ' S ST - (1.437.586)
‘Employers Net GLI OPEB L1ab111ty (Asset) Lo T LLM
Plan F1ducraryNet Pos1t1on asa Percentage - e o o s -
- of the Total GLI OPEB Liability - C 48 86% v

’The total GLI OPEB habrhty is calculated by the System s actuary and each plan’s ﬁduclary net position

is reported in the System’s financial statements. The net' GLI OPEB liability is disclosed in accordance o

with the requirements of GASB Statement No 74:in the System s notes to the ﬁnanc1al statements and
required supplementary mformatlon -

" Long-Term Expected Rate of Retum '

= rThe long-term expected rate of return on the System ] mvestments was determined using a log—normal

- " distribution analysis ‘in ‘which best-estlmate ranges of expected future real tates of return (expected
_ returns, net-of System’s investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

. These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected ‘

. future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The

target asset allocation and best estimate of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class are

) summarlzed in the followmg table '

Arithrnetic ] Welghted Average

o o Long-Term: ' Long—T erm
S Target . =~ Expected Expected
Asset Class (Strategy) .~ Allocation- Rate of Return Rate of Return
‘Public Equity - Lo 40.00% - 4.54% - 1 82%
- Fixed Income =~ o 15.00% 0.69% - . 0.10%
Credit Strategies -~ .. 15.00% 396% . 0.59%
"Real Assets. . - 15.00% . - 576% . 0.86%
. Private Equity : : _15.00% 9.53% _1.43%
Total - C10000% T 480%
Inflation ’ - 2.50%

’ *Expected anthmetlo nommal return - _1.30%
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* The above allocation provides a one-year return of 7.30 percent: However, one-year returns do not take

into account the volatility present in each of the asset classes. In setting the long-term expected retum for °

the system, stochastic projections are employed to model future ‘returns under various ecotomic
~ conditions. The results provide a range. of returns over various time periods that ultimately provide a

median return of 6.83 percent, including expected inflation of 2.50 percent.

o I-)iscountRate' R

. Tﬁe;dis‘cdunf rafe used to measure the total GLI OPEB liability was 7.00 percent. The projéction. of cash
- flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that member contributions will be made per the VRS

guidance and the employer contributions will be made in accordance with the VRS funding policy at rates

- equal to the difference between actuarially determined contribution rates adopted by the VRS Board of - |

Trustees and the member rate.  Through the fiscal year ending June 30, 2019, the rate contributed by the
entity for.the GLI OPEB will be subject to the portion of the VRS Board-certified rates that are funded by
the Virginia General Assembly. From July 1, 2019 on, employers are assumed to' contribute 100 percent
of the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the GLI OPEB’s fiduciary

- met position was projected to ‘be-available to make all projected fisture benefit payments of “eligible -

' "  paqunﬁs to determine fhc total GLI OPEB tiability. - "

Sensitivity of the Bmployer’s Proportionate Share of the Net GLI OPEB Lisbili

'Discount Rate ST _ ol

 : The following presents the employer’s prprrt'iqnate"_éhar‘c"of the ﬁet GLI OPEB liability usmg the . '
* discount rate of 7.00 percent, as well as what the employer’s proportionate share of the net GLI OPEB-

~ liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is one percentage-point, lower (6.00
. percent) or one percentage point higher (8.00 percent) than the current rate: - . S '

o 'l.OO%VD:ecrv'ease : Currépt Discount ' lfOO%}IncreéSe’ '

o ‘ Colu _ (6.00%) .~ _Rate(7.00%) _(8.00%) . A

- Employer’s proportionate share A Lo T o
- of the Group Life Insurance . S ‘ S e
Program Net OPEB Liability: - § 56,000 =~ . § 43,000 =~  '$ 33,000

- Group Life Tnsurance Program Fiduciary Net Position

: Detailed.,infoﬁnafion,about_:thc Group Life Insurance Progrém’s Fiduciary Net Position is available in the ;
. separately issued VRS 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR). A copy of the 2017 VRS * -

employees. Therefore the long-term expected rate of return was applied to all periods of proj ected benefit . |

to Changes in the o

CAFR may be downloaded from the- VRS website at http:/www.varetire.org/Pdf/Publications/2017-

annual-report.pdf, or by writing to the System’s Chief Financial Officer at P.O. Box 2500, Richmond, VA,
- 23218-2500. R v T o

Payables to the VRS G-rdub Life Insurance OPEB Plan .

At June 30, 2018, there was no oﬁtsténding payable from the Town to the VRS Group. ‘I;ifé‘ Insﬁlfance =

- OPEB Plan.-
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~Note 15 Accountmg Changes and Accountmg Standards

- In fiscal year 2018, the Town rmplemented Governmental Accounting Standards (GASB) Statement 75,

- Accounting and Fmanczal Reportmg Jfor Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary
_objective of this ' Statement is to. improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions. The Statement establishes standards for

" measuring and recogmzmg liabilities, deferred outflows of résources, deferred inflows of resources, and - |

- expense/expendltures The Statement also establishes the methods and assumptlons that should be used

~ for the various' calculatrons in a plan for postemployment benefits other than' pensions. Note disclosure

" and required. supplementary 1nformat1on requirements about postemployment benefits other than pensrons
. are also addressed. ' ‘ ‘ : :

The 1mplementat1on of Statement 75 resulted in: restatement of the begmnmg net pos1t1on of the

- governmental and business-type activities in the government-wide financial statements, The restatement is
also reflected in the beginning net position of the water and sewer fund included in the Propnetary Funds’

. Statements- of. Net Position. The beginning net pension habrhty, less the ﬁscal 'year 2017 employer
: contrxbutlons resulted in the adjustments below

Governmental - BhsinesseTYpe' Water?&“‘ o
S Activity Activities - SewerFund -

. Net positioﬁ,at Jurie 30,2017 § ‘-4,763,050_, $ 7235132 $7235132

Change in reportmg for
postemployment benefits . o T
’ other than pensron costs . . _. .~ (30250) (15.750) - ___ (15,750)

ViNetpos1tronatJune30 2017, BRI SN o R
‘ restated . 8 4732800 __7.219.382  $ 7,219,382



_ Required Supplementary Information-
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES

IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
Year Ended June 30 2018

Excess (deﬁc1ency) of revenues over

expendltures

Net change in fund balance

' FUND BALANCE AT BEGINNING OF YEAR |

) FUND BALANCE AT END OF YEAR

8 (13753)

Ongmal ~ -Variance
. &PFimal =~ Positive =~
- __Budget © __ Actual = __(Negative)
' General property taxes 8 579,173 - $ . 576,901 - (2,272)
- Other local taxes - R ' 472,707 530,081 57374
‘Permits, privilege fees, and regulatory hcenses T 110,225 - .- 25,058 14,833 -
Revenues from the use of money and property 16,425’ 12,171 . (4,254)
*-Charges for semces 30,800 23,022 - ,
~ Miscellaneous 30,033- 27424 - "‘('2 *609)
Intergovernmental réevenues: ’ o T o
Commonwealth 24700 35122 10422
County | - 1,000 >, 151,039 __ 150,039
N Total revenues © $.1,165063 - $1,380,818 § 215755
VEXPENDITURES . S |
~ Current ;- ' g : , ST

. General govemment admm1strat10n -$ 861,984 - § 832,734 § 29,250
. Community development - © 43,800 40,649 3,151

- Parks, recreation’ and cultural 52,590 34,593 © 17,997

; Pubhc safety - . 13,500 " 13,500 R
Public works 179,932 186,190 . . (6,258)

- Debt service * 149,010 - - 148,621 - - 389 .

- Capital outlay . ~ 2000 - 126,167 .. (124,167)

Total expendltures -$ 1,302,816  $ 1,382,454

3 (19.638)

$ (1636) § 136117

8 (137,753
1,997,762 -

1 997 762

s a, 636) $ 136,117

LML&ML&&'

(7.778)
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h SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOWN’S NET PENSION (ASSET) LIABILITY -
AND RELATED RATIOS AND SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CON’I‘RIBUTIONS

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE TOWN’S NET PENSION (ASSET) LIABILITY ;

AND RELATED RATIOS _ .
2017 _ 2016 o 2015. ; ,'2014 :
eTotalpensmnhablllty ) SR SR SR : o R
Servicecost . . . $ S5L718 $ 49,173 . $ 39110 § 36,166
~Interest = ST I 17,265 13,741 . 6,423 3,637
.Changesofbeneﬁtterms - L e e e SRR
Differences between expected and actual expenence 3,739 0 (12,577) - 59,014 0 - o
Changes in assumptions - (1548 - -0 - T
‘Benefit Payments, mcludmg refunds of employeeg [ e
- contributions : - _(6). e T - SN
Net change in total pensnon habillty o f - 65,171 . 1 750,337 104,547 - 39,803
Total pensmn liability - beginning =~ . 246 639 196 302 91,755 _____ 51,952 -
Total pensmn llablhty ending (a) R § 31 1 ,§1Q § ;gg g;g -§ 196302 $ 91,755
"Plan ﬂduclary net position: - T o o S
' Contributions - employer . R 27,704 $ 30,137 $ 26970 $ 23,007
'~ Contributions - employee ‘ - S 25290 23,400 21,041 . 32,974
Net investment income =~ 0340120 0 0 5026 0 7_,,,499' 715,109
~ Benefit payments, mcludmg refunds of employee ' R T o ‘
. contributions : _ R B BN () - -
.. Administrative expense L (140) - (85) (53)‘1., - (34)
‘Other - o IR 6y 2 -
" Net change in plan fiduclary net posntlon ¢ . 86,827 = . 58,476 55,456 - 71,057
" Plan fiduciary net position - beginning =~ 249,841 - 191365 ' 135.909 64852 -
o Plan ﬁduclary net posntlon endmg ) § : ;;g,ggg § ; g,ggg § !21,;@; 8 135909 .
Political subdmsnon’s nét’ pensnon (asset) IR
1 ‘liability - ending (a) - (b) : : S;;LL;&&I gi&l S:__Lﬂ_l $_ (44,159) -
- Plan fiduciary net posntlon asa percentage ’ , L s ‘
: of the total pensnon liability - S “ 107, 97% ‘ 101 30% - .9748% 148.12% -
- Covered payroll o R $ 518 076 $ 500,141 - '$ 435845 $ 317,750 -
, Political subdiwsion’s net pension (asset) llablhty ' ' ' IR
. asa percentage of covered payroll N 4 80)% (0 64)% , 113%. - (13.9)% ‘

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
T Years Ended June 30, 2015 through 2018 '

Contnbntlons in S :
Relationto ‘ ‘ ~+ -+ Contributions

Contractually Contractually Contnbutxon Employer’s . asa % of .
Required - Required Deﬁclency Covered . =~ Covered °
o S Contnbutlon Contribution “(Excess) Payroll "~ Payroll .
Date ~ - (1 - (2) o 3 4 i (5) '
2015 - $ 27,720 $ 27720 $ - % 435;8_45‘$_’ 6.36%
2016 - 51,284 51,284 - 500,141 10.25%
o 2017 o ‘ 44,781 . 44,781 - . 518,076 8.64% .
2018 46,435 < 46,435 '7 - : 550 620 -~ 8.43%

 Schedules are mtended to show.information for 10 years. Smce 2015 is the f rst year for thzs presentatzon, no other
.data is available. However addzttonal  years will be. zncluded as they become available. ,

(Contmned)
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| ‘ Notes to Requlred Supplemental Informatlon For the Year Ended June 30 2018

:Changes of benefit terms There have been no actuarially matenal changes to the System beneﬁts prov1s1ons since

" the prior actuarial valuation. The 2014 valuation includes Hybrid Retirement Plan members for the first time. The
' hybrld plan applies to most new employees hired on or after January 1, 2014 and not covered by enhanced hazardous -

~ . -duty benefits. Because this is a fairly new benefit and the number of participants was relatlvely small, the 1mpact on
the 11ab111t1es as of the measurement date of June 30, 2017 are not. matenal o

, ' Changes of assumptlons The followmg changes in actuanal assumptrons were made effectlve June 30 2016
“based on the most recent expenence study of the System for the four-year perlod endmg June 30, 2016:

Largest 10 Non-Hazardous Duty

: Mortahty Rates Pre-retlrement postfretlrement, Update to a more current mortahty table - -2014 -
| Hhealthy, and disabled S ' projected to 2020 ‘ :
Re.trrement Rates ' Lowered rates at- older ages and changed fmali ,
‘ retiremeént from 70 to 75 - -
Wlthdrawal Rates R Adjusted rates to better fit expenence at each’ year
, -~ age and service through 9 years of service
Dlsablllty Rates | Lowered rates. - .
_Salary Scale . . Nochange . ’
Line of Duty D1sab1hty Increase rate from 14% to 20%

All Others (Non 10 Largest) Non-Hazardous Duty

'Mortahty Rates‘ Pre—retlrement post-retrrement

| Update to a more current mortahty table —:RP-2014;. -

healthy, and d1sabled projected to 2020 :
jRetlrement Rates o Lowered rates. at. older ages and changed ﬁnal
- Lo | retirement from 70 to 75 )
v Withdrawal Rates o _Adjusted rates to better fit experrence at each year
L IR age and service through 9 years of serv1ce
_| Disability Rates Lowered rates : L '
| Salary Scale ‘ No change: o t
| Llne of Duty D1sab111ty | Increase rate from 14% to 15%

Largest 10— Hazardous Duty

Mortahty Rates Pre-retnement post-retlrement'

Update to a more — mortality table - RP-2014
healthy, and disabled pro;ected 10 2020 ' ‘ I
| Retirement Rates Lowered rates at older ages =
| Withdrawal Rates | Adjusted rates to better fit expenence
Disability Rates =~ Increased rates- '
Salary Scale No change ‘
Line of Duty Disability - Increase rate from 60% to 70%

- ‘(Conﬁnued) .
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Notes to Reqmred Supplemental Informatlon For the Year Ended June 30 2018

Al Others (Non 10 Largest) Hazardous Duty

Mortahty ‘Rates Pre-retlrement
healthy, and dl_sabled

post-retlrement

| Update 0 a more current mortahty table = ‘RP-2014‘~

proj ected to 2020

| Retirement Rates’ | Increased age 50 rates, and lowered rates at older 1
L R : ‘. ages i '
' | Withdrawal Rates - - Adjusted rates to better ﬁt experience at each year
AT T | age and service through9years of service
Disability Rates " | Adjusted rates to better ﬁt expenence
| Salary Scale | 'No change

- | Increase rate from 60% to 45% .

Line of Duty Disability
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SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER’S SHARE OF NET OPEB LIABILITY - N
GROUP LIFE INSURANCE PROGRAM AND SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS

' Schedule of Employer’s Share of Net OPEB Llablhty Group Llfe Insurance Program

Do . o 2017
Employer $ Proportlon of the Net GLI OPEB L1abllxty (Asset) o e .00290%
Employer ] Proportlonate Share of the Net GLI OPEB L1ab111ty (Asset) ) | - $§ 43,000
Employer sCovered Payroll E e Lo s 55‘0‘,6207 ‘
Employer s Proportxonate Share of the Net GLI OPEB L1ab1l1ty (Asset) o . :
asaPercentage of its Covered Payroll o | , o 181%
Plan deuolary Net Pos1t10n as a Percentage of the Total GLI OPEB Llablhty - '," - 48.86% :
' "Schedule of Employer Contrlbutlons Year Ended June 30, 2018
L - e Contnbutlons' L S o o
S inRelationto . . - R -Contributions
Contractually ~Contractually - Contribution ~ ~ Employer’s . asa% of
-~ Required +Required. *~  Deficiency. - ‘Covered .~ Covered.
ol -Contribution Contnbutlon (Excess) - . Payroll - - Payroll
Date " S ¢ ) (2) (3. @ 6 .
2018 T ‘;,$‘ 1,844 $ - 1844 $ $550620 S 335%

Schedules are mtended to show mformatton for 1 0 years Since 201 8 is the  first year for thzs presentatton, only
one year of data is avazlable However, additional years wzll be mcluded as they become avatlable -



- Notes to Requlred Supplemental Informatlon For the Year Ended June 30, 2018 "

Changes of benef‘ t terms ~ There have bcen no actuanally materlal changes to the System beneﬁt prov1s1ons smce

, the prior actuanal valuatlon -

| _Changes of assumptlons -»l‘he."folloyyin'gchan«ges m actuanal assumptlons were made effectlve June 30 2016 '

based on the most recent expenence study of the System for the four-year penod endmg June 30 2016:"

N on-Largest Ten Locallty Employers General Employees

‘Wortallty Rates (Pre-retlrement post- ‘Updated to a ‘more, current mortahty table - RP-2014
retitement healthy, and dlsabled) : projected to 2020. . \
: Retlrement Rates , | T Lowered retirement rates a older ages and extended |
- - ‘ o final retirement age from 70 to 75 ‘
Wlthdrawal Rates -~ | Adjusted termination rates to better fit experience‘ at
O PP TR R ' _each age and service year - Lo
. | Disability Rates Lowered disability rates
| SalaryScale - _| No change -
Lﬂe of Duty Dlsablhty R L Increased rate ﬁom 14to 15%

- Non-Largest Ten Locahty EmplOyers = Hazardous Duty Employees

FMoxtahty Rates (Pre~ret1rement post- ‘»Updated to a more current mortahty table - RP-2014 =
. retirement healthy and dlsabled) | projected {0 2020 - :
| Retirement Rates* = = _ 7| Increased age 50 rates and lowered rates at- older ages g
| Withdrawal Rates o o —AdJusted termination' rates to better ﬁt expenence at |
1 R R SRR - each age and service year = - o
Disability Rates .. B " |'Adjusted rates to better match expenence
SalaryScale T Nochange =
Line of Duty Disability Decreased rate from 60% to 45% E
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRG]NIA

NERAL FUND

‘.Page 67

STATEMENT OF REVENUES  COMPARED TO BUDGET
‘ Year Ended June 30 2018 )

" GENERAL PROPERTY TAXES

Real estate taxes ,
Penalties and interest . v
Commercial & industrial real estate taxes

, OTHER LOCAL TAXES
- Sales taxes
- Utility tax =~

- Cigarette tax
Meals tax

"~ Motor vehicle licenses

Bank franchise tax

- Busmess hcenses .

o PERMITS PRIVILEGE FEESAND

. REGULATORY LICENSES

Zoning apphcatlon fees . ‘
Plat fees o

Conditional use pernnts :

' . Inspections o
‘ Developer proffers :

REVENUES FROM THE USE OF MONEY '

AND PROPERTY
Interest eamed

CHARGES FOR SERVICES
' Reimbursements:
Copier "~
Engineering
- Legal
. Advertising
Love Winter
“LoveFall " -
Love Summer
Love Spring

(Co'ntinued)

Ongmal .

" Variance

2175

8 30800

- '&Finat . Positive
. Budget —_Actual _ (Negative)
$ 543,003 $ 539778 $ (3315 -
2,000 1,281 (7119)
34080 35842 1,762
$ 579073 3" 576901 - §_(2272)
$ 215000 § 206202 § (3,798)
14200 ° 14667 . 467
- 19,080 22344 39264
120,000 137,572 17,572
34,000. 134695 695
16,867 28,613 . 11,746
| 53560 85988 32408
8472707 § 530081 § 57374
- $ 7,500 $ 12975 $ 5475
-~ L2 CoL1Rs
250 250
1,350 3,525
A 7183 7183
“$ . 10225 L 25058 $ 14833 .
o8 6425 3 12171 § (4254
8 16425 § 12171 § (a254)
$ -8 238 3
8,000 17,649 9,649
3,000 ; (3,000)
o300 : - (300)
2500 - (2,500)
6,000 - (6 000)
5,000 5,250 250
6,000 . 100 (5.900)
$_ 23022

$ ams



‘ INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUES
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE V]RG]NIA

GENERAL FUND :
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, COMPARED TO BUDGET
Year Ended June 30 2018

Or_lglnal o : " 'Variance

&Fimal -~ . - Positive -

_Budget  _ Actual = (Neg ative)
MISCELLANEOUS o - o
Paver donations R S 84000 $ 2482 . $ (1 518)
' Clock Tower donations. S : N 6,000 - 1953 (4,047)
Refuse service fees o TR DR 15,033 0 14 140" . (893)
Other o 500 8849 3849

830033 27424 5 (2.609)

Commonwealth , ‘ : T o s
Rolling Stock tax .~ S o $ 1000 8§ - 202 '$ . 102 ' .
- Motor vehicle carriers’ tax | - R ' T 2,000 2,656 - ... 65 .
Communications tax -~ 12,600 - 12264 . (336).

- Fire program funds ; o T 10,000 20000 10,000

824700 $ 35122 § 10422

County e R T ‘ ; PR

2A Broad Way funds B R SRRt I | '150,000 ‘:$ 150,000 -
Litter grant - AN 3 . L 1,000 1,039 -39

R ER R : ' '711771000 $ 151039 L150039"

Totnlrévenue’s : SRR 51 lgggg;_ § gggglg ’ § Zléléi ’

-
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TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA ) | |
GENERAL FUND

STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDGET
B Year Ended ‘June 30 2018 -

rOng‘lnal - R v, Vaﬁance j
& Fimal =~ = . . Positive .

. . Budget _ Actual  ~ (Negative)
~ GENERAL GOVERNMENT ADMINISTRATION o o L

Admlmstranon : : I o IR S

 Administrative salanes e "% 438537 . $ 402,132, - § 36,405
‘Maintenance support o o RPTEE 8,080 4217 3863
Council salaries, =~~~ - R : 20,000, - 18,083 - 1917
Payroll taxes - P o . i 32,630 - 272100 - 15,420
Healthinurance " 600 59259 1811

. ICMA Hybrid retirement . . - -~ 30000 0 3,032 (32)

'VRS Contribution . 29448 34608 - (5,160)
Auditing A .. 8000 . 8400 - (400)
Legal fees, non—rennbursable : S - 50500 85103 . (34, 603)
Consulting services L 30,000 448790 (14,879)

.- Advertising, non-relmbursable oo 33000 - . 6,328 - (3 028)
.- Telephone - - T _ 2,000 2,602 . (602)
_Cellular phones . - - . S 2,000 3,067 (1 067)
~ Postage - = T 3500 3112 - 388 -

_ Software and support o - 4,807 - S 647 4160
Softwareupgrade - T SR S 4000 16,008, (12,008)

" Website . S Es0 1996 (L446)

- Copier lease - SRFT S 4800 . 4,451 349
Books and subsonptlons L g S0 o 29 971
Office computers -~~~ . . 7,000 © 3,347 - 3,653
Office supplies -~ .. = : . 14000 - 10,641 3359
Office cleaning -~ - R ST 3,030 0 o 3,048 : gy -

- Snowremoval - R E 1,600 - 2,063 . (463)

: Mowmg/landscapmg ST e 28000 2,574 226
Repairs/replacements ; o - 15,000 . 16,140 (1,140)

- Vehicle mainténance IR DT . 4000 579% 0 (1,79) -
Edueation -~ - . - . - 6,500 6295 205 -

- Mileage and travel = - 4000 1326 ’2_6_74

Building and grounds g ' o S R
_ Electricity - - : T - 4,500 4843 - (343)
Water and sewer _ . .. .70 61l 89

Other ST BT LT

7 'Donatlon, Love ¢évents o T 22,500 13,937 8,563

- Donation, other . . -~ R S 9,400 - 2,558 6,842 -
Softwareupgrade BRI Ce e 10,000 - 2360 - - 9,640
‘Economic development - o S 212,000 3,774 - 8,226

" Tourism/branding = = T : ‘ 3,150 652 -2,498’ -

-~ Municipal dues - E -3,500 3,066 L 434
' General hablhty nsurance -~ : 12,000 - 12,111 S (111)
_ . Refunds » AR ‘ 6,000 10,165 (4,165)

" Beautification - T ‘ - 710,000 © 2,897 S 7,103

 Hospitality = e 2,000 1329 671 .

- Decals - ‘ ’ ' 108 .- 38 1,044

Total general government admlmstratlon - $ 861984 $ 832734 $ 29250
(Contlnued) | | |



o Legal -

. Street lighting

TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA

o GENERAL FUND '
STATEMENT OF EXPENDITURES, COMPARED TO BUDGET

Year Ended June 30, 2018

COMlVIUNITY DEVELOPMENT
Consultant
Engineering, non-relmbursable _
Planning commission salaries -
Planning commission, other -
Event expense
Miscellaneous

B ‘Reimbuirsable expendltures E '

. Engineering

Total commumty development

: PUBLIC SAFETY

Donation to fire and rescue company
F ire fund allocation -~
Total publlc safety

- ",_PARKS RECREATION AND CULTURAL

‘Maintenance
Litter grant spendmg

~_ Utilities = -

‘Beautification -
Supplies .

| Park tools and: equlpment o p
Total parks recreatlon and cultural/ ,

. VPUBLIC WORKS

Refuse service - . - ERE
Street signs, o
Street sweeping

Total pubhc works R

" DEBT SERVICE

-Principal
Interest
Total debt semce

CAPITAL OUTLAY
‘Broad Way Improvement 2A
Bonnie’s 7-Eleven sidewalk

" *N. Church St, 1mprovement

Town Square
Town office expansion
* Storm ditch improvement -
_ Total capital outlay . -

Total expenditures

\Page ’.70_ :

Onglnal - Variance
- & Final" . B Positive
Budget -_Actual (Negative) - -
§ 10000 $ 6,809 $ 3,191
2,000 - 208 1,792
- 8,400 7,700. 700 .
2,000 " 648 1,352
- 6,500 . 2,343 4,157
3,900 - 3,900
) 18000 - 16,221 - (8,221),
3000 6.720 " (3.720)
vL 43 800 - $ 40649 § 3.‘151
'$ . 3500 $ 3500 $ <
S 10000 _ 10,000 -
$ 13500 $ 13500 § -
$ 25690 § 15160 $ 10,530 -
~ 1,000 I3 21
9,900 5,331 4,569
10,000 . 9,572 428
© 4,000 . 1,645 - 2,355
2,000 21127 (112) "
-8 52590 § 34593 $§ 17997
$ 150332 $ 163,924 - § (13,592)
- 10100 772 9328
4000 . 7200 ‘
- 15,500 14,294 1,206
$§ 179932 § 186190 § (6.258)
$ 85000 $ 85000 § o -
.. 64010 - 63,621 389 -
$ 149010 ~$ 148621 §
$ - 0% 74139 - (74139)
- 13,852 (13,852) .
- 13,281 (13,281)
- 10,850 (10,850) -
SN 14045 : ,(140,45)
: 2,000 C . 2000
$ 2000 $ 126167 $ (124,167)
gﬁ&_é L,L&dgé

G20y



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA

WATER AND SEWER FUND

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES '

IN NET POSITION - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
- Year Ended June 30 2018 o

" OPERATING REVENUES
Charges for services

Late charges -

Connection fees ‘
" Frye Court Service District tax
- Reimbursements, developers -
‘Miscellaneous :

: Total operatmg revenues o

OPERATING EXPENSES
. Personnel services.

- Contractual services .
- Repairs and: mamtenance

. Utilities - :
~ Communications
. Insurance ‘

: M1scellaneous A
.. Supplies and equipment

- Depreciation . :
' Total operatmg expenSes

Operatmg mcome (loss)

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSE)
- (Loss):on disposal of equipment ‘
- Lease of water tower space - -
- Interest income
Interest expense ‘ ‘
‘ Total nonoperatmg revenues (expense)

Income (loss) before contnbutlons D
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Sewer availability fees
Water availability fees :
' : Total capltal contnbutlons '
Change in pet pos1t1on ‘

. NET POSITION AT BEGINNING OF YEAR "

"NET POSITION AT END OF YEAR

Page 71"

Vnriance o

Onglnal ‘
~ & Final -~ A Positive
- - _Budget b, © __Actual (Negative)
©$1,006331 $.,1,02_2,322 C§ 15991
19500 19,048 - (452)
36000 76000 . 40,000
2626 . 2477 . (149)
10,000 5700 (4,300)°
10460 . 6258 - ___ (4200
- SLosasl P LI3LE0S $ 46888
$ 41509017 § 369377 §° 45713 .
{14500 73793 - 40,707
208945 193518 - 15427
60,500 - 59,897 603
8200 . 6045 2,155
20000 - 21,725 (1,725)
15900 12183 3,717
79610 70,650 . 8960
v 400472 (A02472)
3 922 745 $1200660 § (86915)
'1$ 162 72 S (77855 $ (40021)
s os oams s o ans)
75613 78746 - 3133
16425 25754 9329
o (112229) (91497 20732 -
(019D § 11288 531479
0§ 141981 5 (66567) $ (08548)
§ 214200 § 249000 -8 35700
7 145800 __ 170,100 24300
5 360000 § 420000 § 60000
$ 501,981 $ '_353'433', $ (148,548)
7219382 7219382 -

g 414§,54§1



TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE VIRGINIA

WATER AND SEWER FUND

STATEMENT OF OPERATING EXPENSES, COMPARED TO BUDGET

PERSONNEL SERVICES
- Utility operators -
Maintenance salaries
~ Payroll taxes
Beneﬁts ,

' CONTRACTUAL SERVICES o
Engmeenng
- ‘Auditing
Sample testmg, sewer '
- Sample testing, water
© Consulting services
- Legal services
GIS update
Software support ‘
© Well contributions to 3RM ;
Facility repairs
Relmbursable -expenses:
Legal
" Engineering -
Water & sewer record drawmg

] REPAIRS AND MA]NTENANCE
. Sewer: .
Permits -
- Bquipment repair = -
Mowmg/landscapmg
Snow removal .
Maintenance contracts
Sludge hauhng
WTP system repairs
Frye Court lift station
_'Inﬂow and’ mﬁltratlon mamtenance
_SCADA operation
Water: ‘
Plant/water line repair -
Service contracts
" Equipment repair. - -
* Asphalt work :
- Water meter installation -
-+ 'Water tower maintenance
~'SCADA operation

UTILITIES
Electricity-water
-Electricity-sewer. _
Electrlc1ty-Frye Court lift statlon

(Contmued)

Year Ended June 30,2018

Page72

(218) .

 (2255) | .

‘Ongmal‘ Variance
- & Final Positive
~ _Budget ~ _ Actual . (Negative) -
$ 319276 '$ 280,364 $ 38912
- 606 - - 606
23813 | 20,531 - 3,282
71395 . 68482 - 2913 -
7 $.415090 $ 369377  § 45713
% 15000 § - . § 15,000
. 10,000 8,400 1,600 - -
132,000. - . 29,749 2251 ‘
4,000 - 2,313 1,687
R L T,000 28,881 (21 881) -
o 15,000 2,195 12, 805~
e ‘ 6,000, - 6000
- 4,500 2,255 2,245 -
3,500, - L. 3,500
7,000 - 7,000
2,000 - - 2,000.‘
- 500 - 500
o 8000 - 8000,‘
$ 114 500 3 73793 8§ 40, 707 -
- $ 2805 -$ 2,721 % - 84
36,0000 26,717 9,283
- 3,700 3,237 463
- 1,500 - " 3,866 : (2 366)
6,500 5,103 - 1,397
© 60,000 57,420 : 23,5‘80
- 28,000 - 35,032 (7,032)
2,500 4,118 . (1,618)
10,000 8,374 1,626
5,000 - 5218
80 (850)
7,000 . 3,021 3,979
4000 - 6,255
~ 5,000 - . 5,000
17,340 16,885 . -
14,600 14,580 20
5,000 121 - 4.879
' $ 208945 $ 193518 § 15427
$ 30,000 $ 28769 $ 1,231
' -30,000 30,948 948)
500 180 320
'$ 60500 $ 59897  §_ 603

455 .



o ,MISCELLAN EOUS

Page73
TOWN OF LOVETTSVILLE, VIRGINIA
WATER AND SEWER FUND

STATEMENT OF'OPERATING EXPENSES, COMPARED TO BUDGET N
‘ Year Ended June 30, 2018

Ol,'lglnal 7 Varisnce
~ &Fimal - . Positive
' Budget = _ Actual {Negative)

COMMUNICATIONS TR el | o

o Telephone S R 8. 6500 $ 5185 § 1,315

© DSL B AR 1700 860 - 840
R T 8- 8200 § 6045 2155

o

: ~Gcncra1,liability T o 820,000
SRR - | $_20.000

 (1.725)
(1725

21725
21725

elee

F SN

 Training -~ 86300 $ 6233 § 67
" Dues -, ' R S - 1,000 - 590 co 410
©Advertising 5000 500 N
- Credit card fees =~ o S To1000 2721 - - (621)
Rennbursements/refunds o oo 5000 - 1,655 3345
MlssUtlhty R 21,000 484 . _ . 5160
Sl — ' ©0 - 8 15900 .§ 12,183 § 3717

: SUPPLIES AND EQUIPMENT ,
Sewer: . o S o LT KR P
.Soﬁwareupgrade , S - % 1250008 -8 1250
Sampletesting -~ . . . S 50000 1365 3635
.. Chemicals .. = .- RN R 9,000 14,108 " (5,108)
 Gas/diesel fuel o o 2000 . 960 1,040
Office supplies’ = o o T 5000 2,789 0 (1,289)
Postage -~ oo :" 1500 1,448 0 -52
Safetysupphes . EREE 02,5000 . 268 ‘2;232 :
~ Spare parts - TR S 12,000 8,083 3,917
“Tools S 25000 2819 . (319)
" Stone/gravel T %0 1080
~ Vehicle expense - ' , S 13,550 S 13,494 56
Uniforms - ..~ . . L 30000 4817 1(1,817)
Water S B o Lt R -
Software upgrade - . R 1,250 - - - 1,250
Sample testing S ST 4,500 - 5416 . (916) -
+ Chemicals =~ S S 7,500 - 8240 - (740)
© Gas/diesel fuel St 2,000 987 . - 1,013
Office supplies = o . e “1,500 - - 1,029 - 471
~ Office equipment . . IR - 1,500 . - . ... 981 . 519
.. Postage . ‘ S C . 1L,500 951 549
- Safety supplies . B . ) S 2,000 507 - 1,493
- ‘Tools c i - o o 2,000 '2,388- - - (388)
Stone/gravel - 130 - 1,030
* S \ o - $ 79610 $ - 70650 $ 8,960 -

DEPRECIATION S e L
~ Depreciation o - 8 -8 402472 § (402472)
SRR B S $ - 8 402472 §(402.472)

Total operating expenses = 7 - $ 922,745  $ 1209660 § (286,915)
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. David W, Black, CPA =
Managing Partner

Christopher R. Montgomery, CPA

:& Company | : o . TaxPartner

INDEPENDENT AUDIT ORS’ REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED
IN ACCORDAN CE WITH GOVERNZWENT A UDITING STANDARDS

- . To the Honorable Town Council

- Town of Lovettsville - - a
- P.O. Box 209 ,

' Lovettsville, VA ‘20180_' ‘

, 'We have authed, in, accordance with- the audltmg standards generally accepted in the Umted States of Amerlca and :
. the. standards apphcable to the financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
- Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type.

 activities and each major fund, of the Town of Lovettsville, Virginia, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and
" the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Lovettsville’s basic financial -

- statements, and have issued our report thereon dated December 10, 2018. The financial statements of the Town’s - ., _
~fiduciary funds were not audited and this report does not include reporting on mternal control over ﬁnanclal reportmg S

or mstances of reportable noncomphance assoc1ated w1th those funds
'Internal Control Over Financnal Reportmg

In planmng and perfonmng our audit of the ﬁnanc1al statements, we: cons1dered the Town of Lovettsvﬂle ] mternal ,
“control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the

_ circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the- finandial statements, but not for the purpose of
i expressmg an opmlon on the effectiveness of the Town of Lovettsville’s internal control. Accordmgly, we do not .

express an op1mon on the effectlveness of the Town of Lovettsvﬂle s mternal control - : B

LA deﬁczency m lnternal control exlsts when the design or operatlon of a control does not allow management or '
- employees, ‘in the normal course of performmg their assigned functions, to prevent, or- detect and correct,

. misstatements on a timely basis. - A materzal weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal

control such that there is a reasonable pos31b111ty that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will -
~_not be prevented or detected and corrected on a tnnely ba313 A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or-a
~ combination or deﬁclencles, in 1nterna1 control that is less severe than a materlal weakness, yet meortant enough to
" merit attention by those charged w1th governance - '

Young, Nlcholas,Branner&Phllhps, LLP , F S 7 . Retired Partners-

Certlﬁed Public Accountants = ' T - " Edward M. Young, CPA
Located at 1041 South High Street R ‘ S B ;agoaj 11';:;(:1?:; Ccl;‘i

Mailing P.O. Box 2187 . ‘ : S v = A :
" Harrisonburg, VA 22801-9506 : o : ' - Richard E. Phillips, CPA
. (540) 433-2581 « BAX (540) 433-0147 R




Our consideratibn of internal control was for thé limited purpose described in the preceding paragraph and was ot _ -
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designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies
“and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified. However, we
identified the following deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.

1

The management and staff of the Town lack the éxpcrtise‘ to reconcile certain accounts, maintain de‘pvre'giat‘ion o

schedules, and make all adjusting entries necessary. to prepare financial statements in accordance with

generally accepted accounting standards. As a result, of this deficiency in-internal control, the Town’s. '

 financial statements may be misstated without the assistance and expertise of a third party. .

The -mahégement of the Towr has enlisted ‘our firm to  provide ‘basic -accounting assistance such- as'
reconciling certain accounts, maintaining depreciation schedules, and proposing journal entries. Professional

' standards indicate that it is acceptable for the auditor to perform such’ nonaudit ‘services providing

independence is not impaired. However, the auditor cannot be cofn’s'idered: part of the Town’s internal control

- and this matter is required to be communicated to you.

)

Mé.nagériient believes this“praCtice‘to be aécéptablei and ‘cost'be,ncﬁcial: to the} Town. :

. - The management and staff of the Town lack the expertise to ~prepare‘fmanciailstétements in accordanice with

" generally accepted accounting standards, As a result of this deficiency in internal control, the Town’s

. financial statements may be misstated without the assistance and expertise of a third party. -

. service providing independence is not impaired. ' However,  the auditor cannot be considered part ‘of the

The management. of the Town has"e‘;ﬂisted' our firm to provide assistance in draﬁing —‘thevTown’vs'ﬁnaﬁci‘al‘ o
_statements.  Professional standards indicate that it is accept

- Town’s internal control and this mater is required tobe communicated to you.

- Mahagement' believes this practice tobe acceptable and cost beneficial to the Town.

We also identified the folldwiné deficiency in internal control that we consider to be a significant ‘«déﬁcichY.r B

3 1

" reporting. The employees appear to perform their duties in a structured and conscientious manner. The

Propcf'intemal.control is not always possible due to the relatively small 'nt@mbéf of persons. ini'o‘l“ved'in, R

. processing transactions. We recognize that because. of the small size of the Town, it may not be

.....

_economically feasible t'oi have adequate segregation of duties but we are required to report this condition n :
under our professional responsibilities.” .- B B ' - S Lo

The Town has Asegrcg’,ated/certéixi duties of its employees to help_pre\;eht or ﬁrompt}y detect errors in financial

- problem is that with a small staff, if is hard to totally divide the functions of executing 2 transaction,

recording the transaction, and keeping custody of the assets.

In the future, the Town plans to continue to segi:egate emnployee duties as muéh as possible. The Town -
Council and Officials also plan to continue to be actively involved in overseeing the Town’s finangial

operations..

able for the auditor to perform such nonaudit -
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonéble assurance about whether the Town of Loveﬁsvilie’é financial statements are free of

“material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts -

and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement ‘amounts. However, providing an opinion on. compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no

instances of noncompliance or other maters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.
Response to Findings

Thé.TQWn of Lovettsville’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described under the materil weaknesses
~ reported above. The Town of Lovettsville’s response was not subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the

.

audit of the financial statements and,racco'rdin_gly‘, we express no opinion on it.

;Purpos'e of this.'Rgpdrt

‘The purpoSe of this report is solély to describe fhe scope of our testing (’)f'.‘iﬂtemal control and ,cOmplié.ncc; and the

- results of that testing, and ot to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control or on

- compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordan'cé with Government Auditing Standards

* in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any
other purpose. L ' , S SR o o

" Harrisonburg, VA

December 10,2018



